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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

statements in accordance with accounting principles
e design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
tatements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due fo fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

sfperform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmanc:al
tatement The financial statements of the Greene County ABC Board were not

An audit involves “p
statements The‘

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
| statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Greene County, North Carolina as of
June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of America require that Management's Discussion and
Analysis and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Aliowances and the Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on pages 3-11 and 61-64, respectively, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an esseutlaf part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or hlst@rrca“"‘c; ontext. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information In accordance wsth‘ udnfmg standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management ab £ the”?nethods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s respon 0 gur inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basgc taﬁs“tatements We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limj gires do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

awards as required by U.S. Office of Managemeﬂt and Budget® Carcular A“’f33 Audits of Stafes, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Orgamzafrons and the Sfate Smgl@ Audit Implement, ation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis

P
oncshng such Information directly to the underlying accounting and
Mstgiements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
dififig standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
Gfes performed as described above, the combining and individual nonmajor
dules, other schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State

additional procedures, including compari
other records used o prepare the figan

BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.
KINSTON, NC

January 9, 2014



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Greene County, we offer readers of Greene County's financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of Greene County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We encourage readers to
read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the County's
financial statements which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of Greene County exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resglirces-at the close of the fiscal

year by $24,969,775 (nef position).

governmental funds. A capital contribution of $12,881,547 was made by the
of Education relating to the Intermediate School Project. This makes up
position. See note XI — Special item. This compares to an increase of §

s A prior period adjustment of $100,746 was made to the busmess
iH-D).

Y
speclal revenue and capital projects funds) reported combine
increase in fund balance of $3,204,561. This compares"to combipned endmg fund balances of $1, 773 191 after a
net a decrease of $3,1561,795 in 2012. Approximately 36 20% of this total amount, or $1,548,191, is available for
spending at the government's discretion (unassi apd balance). In 2012, the unassigned fund balance was

s At the end of the fiscal year, unassigne
General Fund expenditures for the fi

2,527,368, or 6,50% during the current fiscal year. New debt totaling
nt fiscal year. Key factors in new issuances include 1) USDA funds to
. County Intermediate School; 2) USDA funds to complete construction
tions Project; and 3) funding from a local bank to finance the purchase of a

» Greene County's total debt ingre >
$3,843,361 was issued dufi
comple’se construction ﬂgf‘

Construc 'en be i
Projec:t Congt Sim progress has been carried by the County on the Government-wide Statement of Net
] eption. Construction was completed during the current year with a substantial completion date

. Title to the asset has been transferred to the Greene County Board of Educat:on now that

-000. The remammg $400,000 was to be provided in the form of a grant from USDA. The project
V' ce been updated with the County now receiving USDA funding through two Installment Purchase
e’ts that total $13,584,148. The $400,000 grant is no longer part of the project ordinance.

Qverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction fo Greene County's basic financial statements. The
County's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two
different views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition
to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's
understanding of the financial condition of Greene County.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1

Management's
Discussion and

Analysis

Government-wide Notes to the
Financial # 7 ; Financial Financial
Statementsn g Statements Statements
P Detail

ments (Exhibits 3 through 10) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities
dividual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide
statemi nts There are four parts of the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the
budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes on the financial statements explain in detail
some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details
about the County's non-major governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column on the basic financial
statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Following the notes is the required supplementary information. This section contains funding information about the
County’s pension plans.



Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County's
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide
short and long-term information about the County's financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how they have changed. Net position is the
difference between the total of the County's assets and deferred outflows of resources and the total liabilities and
deferred inflows from resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the County's i aneial condition.

parks and recreation, and general administration.
activities. The business-type aciivities are those that the County charges custom
Landﬁﬂ and Transportation services The final category is the component units inty Waier & Sewer District |

ents within the District. The

been included with the Countys Utility Fund. The Greene Coug strial FacsEzty and Pollutxon Control Financing
Author;ty ex:sts to issue and service revenue bond debt of privatébusinesses for economic development purposes. The
by the county commissioners. Greene
"is financially accountable for the Board by
s to the County.

County ABC Board is legally separate from the County however the ;
appointing its members. Also, the ABC Board is required to dssinbute its pr

; dok at the County's most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used t6¥imaintain’ control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Greene Cajinty, }i : r governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to
ensure and reflect compliance (or non- nce)with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes
or the County s budget ordlnance AH ds of Greene County can be divided into three categories: governmental

ds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities
Most of the County’s basic services are accounted for in governmental
wﬂassets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at
for spendlng in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting

G

{resources available to finance the County's programs. The relationship between government
he Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described

County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a
‘adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the
decisions’of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain
funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the Generai
Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether ar not the County succeeded
in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget
document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2} the final budget as
amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and
4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis {continued)
County of Greene

Proprietary Funds - Greene County has one kind of proprietary fund. Enferprise Funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-wide financial statements. Greene County uses
enterprise funds to account for its utility (water and sewer) operations, landfill operations (that include scrap tire and white
goods), and transportation operations. These funds are the same as those separate activities shown in the business-
type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the functions of Greene County. The County uses an
internal service fund io account for one activity — its self-funded medical insurance operations. Because this operation
benefits predominantly governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service fund has been included
within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used fo account for resources held for the e”gex
government. Greene County has six agency funds.

f parties outside the

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that ig ¢
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notgs
page 24 of this audited financial report. -

i position in the business-type activities of $100,746
iorizfor the year of ($12 971,444). This compares to an

;arovnded by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to

resources needed to repay that debt?
j p@mon of Greene County's net posmon $9 624 034 or-38.54% represents

liquidate these liabilities. An ad
resources that are subject to
(52.20%) is unrestricted. _ the
$30,649,622, w1th res“trzcte anding at $9,873,913. The remaining ($2,582,316) was unrestricted for that year.
Greene County’s Net Position
Figure 2
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities - Totals

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

$5,941,485 $5,570,952 $8,020,934 $8,946250  $13,862,389  §14,5617,202
17,137,487 28,877,401 38,048,717 39,818,541 56,086,204 68,696,032
$23,078,952  $34,448,443 $46,969,651 $48,764,791 $70,048,603 $83,213,234

$25,618,804  $21,681544 $18,154,126  $18,058,990  $43,772,830  $38,740,534

Other jiabilities 907,340 3,748,956 323,580 1,679,172 1,230,920 5,428,128
Total Habilities $26,526,144 $25,430,500 $18,477,706  $19,738,162  $45,003,850 $45,168,662

Total deferred inflows of resdurces $74,978 $103,352 $0 $0 $74,978 $103,353

Nefposition:

Netinvesment in capital assels $6,320,849 $8,530,053 $22,049,805  $22,119569  $28,379,744  $30,649,622

Restricted 3,157,583 3,494 888 6,466,451 6,379,025 9,624,034 9,873,913

Unrestricted (13,009,602) (3,110,351} (24,401) 528,035 (13,034,003) (2,582,316)
Total net position ($3,522,170) $8,914,590 $28.491,945  $29,026,629  $24,969,775  §$37,941,219

6



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (confinued)

County of Greene

There are particular aspects of the County’s financial operations negatively influenced the total unrestricted governmental

net position:

e The County made a capital contribution to the Greene County Board of Education refating to construction costs
for the Intermediate School of $12,881,547 (See Note Xl|}. The expenditures relating to this project have been
carried on the county’s books as construction in progress since inception. Now that construction is complete, the
County has transferred title of the asset to the School Board. As a result, capital asseis along with net investment
in capital assets have both decreased significantly while the debt relating to the project has stayed with the
county. This has a direct negative effect on the county’s total net position for governmental activities.

-

« Change in net position for business-type activities decreased by $635,430 d
increase of $1,662,220 in the prior year. The county received less capital contribu

this year while expenses increased slightly.

Greene County Changes in Net Position

year compared fo an

to water projects

Figure 3
Governmental
Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Sernvices $2,383,297 $3.,253,667 $5,495,636 $4,400,721
Operating Grants and Confributions 3,989,873 1 1,079,824 5,131,967 5,932,707
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,103,238 198,520 1,463,250 1,299,758 1,865,590
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 8,470,347 8,470,347 8,496,840
Local Option Sales Tax 2,138,499 2,138,499 2,083,912
Other Taxes 358 358,311 32,638
Grants and Contributions not restricted
{o Specific Programs 78,000 82,585
Investment Earmnings 709 3,849 1,312 6,028
Other 77,139 2,645 88,751 77,139
Total revenues $16,977,570 $4,454,307 $5,800,590 $23,062,671 $22,778,160
Expenses:
General Government $2,473,445 $2,636,8%1 $2,473,445 $2,636,891
Public Safety 6,379,233 5,419,322 5,379,233 5,419,322
Emvironmentat Protection 46,969 46,206 46,969 46,206
Economic and Physicé 370,035 623,411 370,035 623,411
Human Senices 5,866,560 5977704 5,865,560 5,977,704
479,573 361,990 479573 361,990
2,969,291 2,944,661 2,968,241 2,944 661
906,991 329,784 906,991 328,784
$3,562,583 $3,038,436 3,562,583 3,033,436
726,449 892,056 726,449 892,056
473,185 486,080 473,185 486,080
$18,491,097 $18,339,069 54,762,217 $4,416,572 $23,253,314  $22,756,541
increase (Decrease) in net position
before transfers and special items $117,267 {$1,362,399) ($307,910) $1,384,018 ($190,643) $21,619
Transfers 327,520 (278,202) (327,520) 278,202
Special ltem - Donated Asset{See Note Xi) (12,881,547) 1,026,447 (12,881,547} 1,026,447
Increase (Decrease) in net position ($12,436,760) ($614,154} ($635,430) $1,662,220  ($13,072,190) $1,048,066
Net position, July 1 as originally reported 8,914,590 9,730437 28,026,629 27,364,409 37,841,219 37,094,846
Prior Period Adjustment (See Note 1i-D) (201,693) 100,746 100,746 (201,693)
Net position, July 1 as Restated 8,914,590 9,528,744 29,127,375 27,364,409 38,041,965 36,893,153
Net position, June 30 ($3,522.170) $8,914,590 $28491,945  $29,026,629 $24,969,775  $37,941,219




Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the County's net position by $12,436,760, thereby
accounting for 95.88% of the total reduction in the net position of Greene County. This compares to a decrease of
$815,847 in 2012. The key elements of this year's decrease are as follows:

e The capital contribution of $12,881,547 made by the County to the Greene County Board of Education
makes up 103.58% of total decrease (See Note XI).

s | should be noted that the county has improved from the prior year in that the change in net position
excluding the special item has increased by $1,058,941 from the prior year.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased Greene County’s net posit
4.12% of the total reduction in the government's net position. $100,746 of the change,in
period adjustment (See Note liI-D). Net position increased by $1,662,220 in 2012,
decrease are as follows: k

» The County did not receive any capital contributions relatmg to
Proiect Phases as in recent years.

» Collections for tipping fees in the Counly Landfill d
two years relating to Hurricane Irene cleanup.

requirements.
Governmental Funds. The focus of Gree

requ:rements Specifically, fund bai
resources available for spending a

d of Greene County. At the end of the current fiscal year, Greene County's
Fund was $1,548,191, while fotal fund balance reached $4,276,234. The

governmental funds of Greene County reported a combined fund balance of $4,977,752, a
fom last year. Of this increase, approxumateiy 25.06% is directly related to the positive change in fund
Generat Fund Approx;mateiy 76. ‘EO% is dlrectéy related to the positive change in fund baiance in the

Generql&wFund Budgetary Highlights. During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions.
Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are
used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize
new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; 3) increases in appropriations that
become necessary to maintain services. Several amendments to the General Fund increased revenues by $635,636 and
are explained as follows:

+ The County’s budget was amended to receive an additional $138,500 of Medicaid Hold Harmless dollars.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

e The County’s budget was amended for $2986,100 for additional inmate jail misdemeanant fees.

o The County’s budget was amended fo receive $394,000 from the Golden Leaf Foundation.

¢ The County’s budget was amended to account for appropriations to fund additional County services and to
also degrease funding for other County services for the net amount of approximately ($192,964).

Proprietary Funds. Greene County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of znformatien found in the government-
wide statements but in more detaai Unrestricted net posntlon of the Utility Fund at the enél of the fiscal year amounted to
st

in the discussion of Greene Countys business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration .

totals $56,086, 204 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets |
land, equipment, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

» Purchased new ambulance for EMS Department
&>

« Contributed all construction costs related to th,

placed in service.

Additional amounts of con%?ruct

Greene County’s Capital Assets

{Net of Depreciation)
Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$628,982 $628,982 $359,882 $337.382 $988,864 $066,364

Buildi ;1gs”and System 15,973,682 14,015,587 38,265,444 39,098,204 54,239,026 54,013,771

7
Machinery and Equipment 277,681 294,058 100,543 122,787 378,204 416,845
Vehicles and Moforized Equipment 257,262 211,665 198,825 260,188 456,087 471,833
Construction in Progress 12,827,219 24023 24,023 12,827,219

$17.137487  $28,877,491 $38,048,717  $39,818,541 $56,086,204  $68,696,032

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note HlLA.6 on pages 39-40 of this audited financial
report.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2013, Greene County had total bonded debt outstanding of $40,864,258 all of which is
backed by the full faith and credit of the County.
Greene County’s Outstanding Debt

Figure 5
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Notes Payable $157,002 $145,035
Global Transpark Dewelopment Zone Loan 280,479 212,368
Installment Purchase Contracts $3 843, 361

20 ?90 437 23508 (}35

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

Instaliment Purchase Contract $1,715,416 $1,238,498
Clean Water Bond Loan 1,894,556 72,232 1,722,324
Revenue Bonds 12,739,000 ¢ 76,000 12,663,000

DWSRF Rewohving Loan
Total Business-type Activifies

75,000 '1 275 OGO

durmg the past fiscal year. New debt for the Greene
8,299, new debt for the Greene County Courthouse
N wnth First C:tszens Bank was issued o the County to

bilgat:on debt that a unit of government can issue {o 8 percent
thin that govemments boundaries. The Eegal debt margin for

inticipaged for the June 30, 2014 fiscal year.

~work has been completed on the Court House Renovation Project and the building is being occupied and
ed as designed.

s All work has been completed on the Greene County Intermediate School and full operations have resumed for
the June 30, 2014 fiscal year.

» Greene County has submitted an application for a permit from the Division of Water Resources that would allow
the County to remain at the 25% reduction of withdrawals from the Upper Cape Fear Aquifer. This will potentially
eliminate the need to construct a majority of the final phases of the Greene County Alternative Water Supply
Proiect. A review of these projects is currently under consideration.

10



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

In 2014, Greene County will change Development Tier Designation from the North Carclina Department of
Commerce. The County will change from Tier il to Tier I. A Tier | designation represents the most distressed
counties in the state, which in turn determines a variety of state funding opportunities to assist in economic
development.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014

Governmental Activities: The expenditures in the General Fund are budgeted to increase approximately 1.71%.

The County’s tax rate has increased by 3 cents to $.786 per $100 of assessed va
2014 fiscal year and the collection rate remains strong.

ing in the June 30,
The June 30, 2014 budget includes departmental reductions, employee furlgugl > céd health benefits and
employee participation in the cost of health insurance.

The June 30, 2014 budget includes a $250,000 allocation to the General
amount available for spending at the discretion of the County; ,

11
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EXHIBIT 1

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2013

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $3,259,942 $830,662

Receivables (Nef)

Due From Other Governments 884,691 76,874
Due From CompeanentUnit 21722

Internai Balances
Inventories
Prepaid ltems

.Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

. Notes Receivable:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Capitai Assefs:

_ Land, Improvements, and Construction in Progress
~Ofther Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
Total Capilal Assets

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type Greene County
Activities Activities ABC Board

ASSETS

$170,330
1,042,302 746,383

238,347 (238847)
127,458
8,021
6,900,347

48,750
148,726

383,905 1,012,887 12,055
38,564,812 55,073,317 15,671
$38 948 717 $56_086 204 $27,726

Total Assets 048603 - $333535
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $492,333 $118,049 $611,282 $54.849
Accrued Interest Payable 415,007 65,720 480,727
Customer Deposits 138,811 138,911
Due To Primary Government 21,722
Long-term Liabilities:
Due within cne yeaﬂg\’ 415,309 594,250 1,008,559
Due in more than one ye 25 203 495 17 559 876 42,763,371
Total Liabilit : 3184 S ¢ 345003850
$74,978 $0 $74,978 $0
$6,329,849 $22,049,895  $28,379,744 $27,726
_ ety 35,999 35,999
Register of Deeds 43,418 43,418
abilization by Siate Statute 2,286,392 2,286,392
Humian Senvices 386,745 386,745
Capital Outiay 45,929 45,929
Emergency Telephone 65,112 65,112
Aternative Water Supply 5,851,585 5,851,595
Capital Projects 466,908 466,908
Loan Payments to USDA 293,088 147,948 441,936
Component Unit - Greene County ABC Board 83,808
Unrestricted {13,009 602) (24, 40‘%) ( 13,034 003) 145,342
Total Net Position . maEoodTe) o topdedods | ¢ TEE 7 7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
12



" GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Ci

i

fributions Contributions

Primary Government:
Governmential Activities:

General Government $2,473,.445 $93415

Pubtic Safely 5,379,233 1,571,711 $100,331
Emvironmental Protection 46 969 ;

Economic and Physical Development 370,035 49 557
Human Services 5,865,560

Cultural and Recreation 479,673 394,000
Education 2,969,201 559,380

Intereston Long-Term Debt 206,99

Total Governmental Activities

Business-iype Activities: r
Utility Fund (Water and Sewer) $3,56§,583 ,¢$§ 274,321
Landil Fund 786,449 7 830675
Transporiation Fund 4731485 207,343
Total Business-type Activities : Yo

Component Unit:
ABC Board
Total Component Unit

$690,185

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Properly Taxes, Levied for General Purpose
L.ocal Option Sales Taxes
Other Taxes and Licenses
Grants and Confribufions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
investment Earnings, Unrestricted
Miscellaneous, Unrestricted
Total General Revenues excluding Special ltems and Transfers
Special tem - Donated Asset (See Note Xi)
Transfers
... Jotal General Revenues, S
£ Changein NetPositon =)
Nef Posifion, Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment (See Nofe [1-D)
Net Position, Beginning As Restaled
NET POSITION, ENDING

13



EXHIBIT 2

Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-fype Greene County
Activities Activities Total ABC Board

($2,372,584)
(3,313,630)
(23,626)
(278,578)
(1,728,689}
19,350
(2,409,941)
(906,991)

($11,014,689)

($2,372,584)
(3,313,630)
(23,626)
(278,578)
(1,728,689)
19,350
(2,409,941)

($146,168) ($146,168)
(95,774) (95,774)
(69,322}

($311,264)

$8,470,347 ,
2,138,499 2,138,499
358,311 358,311
78,090 78,090
603 ¢ 1,312 $204
86,106 88,751 5,677
$11,131,956 $11,135,310 $5,881

(12,881,554

; {(12,881,547)
(327 520)

($324,166)

($1 746 237) $5,881

e B : s s
29,026,629 37 941 219 256,964
100,746 100,746

29,1 27 375

38,041 965

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

14



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2013

EXHIBIT 3

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Receivables, Net
Due From Other Gowernments
Due From Component Unit
Due From Other Funds
Current Pordion - Notes Receivable
Notes Receivabie

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payabie and Accrued Liabilities
Due fo Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

Fund Balances:
Resiricted:
Stabilization by State Statute
Register of Deeds
Health Depariment
Sheriff Depariment
Emergency Telephone
Capttal Outlay
USDALoan Payments
Committed: &
TaxReval atson
Assigned: 2

F RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
. are different because:

# not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to payfor current-period expenditures and therefore

are unavailable in the funds.

Non-Major

Major
Intermediate
School Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental

General Project Fund Funds
$2,522,747 $221,051 . $3,230,791
164,783 i 294,985
897,901 961,100
770,911 109,764 884,681
21,722 21,7122
685,137 695,305

49,756

$2,150,840
43,418
386,745
35,999
65,112
45,929

$109,764

164,783

211,474

1,548,191

Amounts ported for governmental activites in the statement of net position {Exhlbtt 1)

Gapital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are

$97,777
419,627

$312,308
456, 958

$25,788 $2,286,392
43,418
386,745
35,999
65,112
45,929
128,205 293,988
11 1

420,693
(360,200)

420,693
{148,726)

1,648,191

$4,977,752

17,137,487

81,202

Internal Senvice Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such
as Insurance and telecommunications, fo individual funds. The assets and Habilifies of certain

internal senice funds are included in governmental activities In the statement ofnet assets.

Deffered inflows of resources for laxes and special assessments receivable
Some liabilities, including notes payable, pension obligation and other postemployment benefits,

are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds (Note 7).

Net Position of Governmentat Activities

(108,107}
424,307

(26,033,81 1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 4

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Major Non~major
Intermediate Other Total
School Governmental  Governmental
General Project Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes $7.037,816 8,609,245
Local Option Sales Taxes 2,138,499 ¥ 2,138,400
Other Taxes and Licenses 358,311 358,311
Unrestricted Intergovernmental 78,080 78,090
Restricted Intergovernmental 3,923,019 4675510
Permits and Fees 337,224 337,224
Sales and Senvices 2,006,891 2,006,891
Investment Eamings 228 134 441

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

592,139

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government $2,186,920
Public Safety $1,248,276 5,585,668
Emvironmental Protection 46,969
Economic and Physical Development 53,822 369,873
Human Services 5,719,771
Cultural and Recreational 397,039
Intergovernmental:
Education 2,980,290 $1,079,103 4,059,293
Debt Service:
Principal 236,733 279,109 515,842
Interest 396,565 435,443 832,008

taﬁment Purchase Obligations Issued

TotatOther Financing Sources (Uses)
iy,

N Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balances, Beginning
FUND BALANCES, ENDING

$754,487  ($1,079,024) ($592,596) (5917,133)
($426,330) ($106,754)  ($533,084)
434274 $69,491 356,901 860,666
(49,250) (49,250)
90,000 90,000

$803.181

$2.438,767

($37,387)

$3,204,561

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

16



EXHIBIT 5

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CARCLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $3,204,561

Gowemnmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
Howewver, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those
assets is allccated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Capital outlay expenditures which are capitalized
Depreciation expense for governmental assets
Special ftem - Donation of Greene County Intermediate

School to Greene County Board of Education (12,881,547) {11,729,008)

Revenues in the Statement of Acthvities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues ID
the funds.

Change in deferred revenues for taxes and interest {138,898)
The issuance of iong-term debt provides curren
resources {o governmental funds, while the
($3,843,361)
515,843
(74,983) (3,402,501}
(11,000)
mpensated absences $13,594
elipension obligation (20,809)
Otheér postemployment benefits (223,966) {231,281)
) ot loss of internal senice fund determined to be
" gowernmental-type {128,636)

Total Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT &

_ GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Original Final Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:

Ad Valorem Taxes $8,010,871 $7,809,6056 $128,121
Local Option Sales Taxes 2,235,000 2,149,234 {10,735)
Other Taxes and Licenses 260,057 354,865 3,446
Unrestricted intergovernmental 86,000 78,084 3]
Restricted Infergovernmental 4,200,266 3,755,440 167,579
Permits and Fees 348,000 321,818 15,406
Sales and Senvices 1,852,077 1,833,086 172,905
investment Earnings 10,600 54

Miscellaneous

283, 200
Total Revenues i

Expenditures:

Current:
General Governmeni $2,276,492 Y $2,186,920 $134,545
Public Safety 4,226,527 %,8?3 4,337,392 97,481

Environmental Protection 55,686 & 50,000 46,969 3,031

Economic and Physical Development 323,803 316,051 7,752

Human Services 6,143,811 5,719,771 424,040

Cultural and Recreational 417812 397,039 20,773
Intergovernmental;

Educafion 2,999,005 2,980,290 18,715
Debt Service: :

Principal Retirement 223,496 223,505 238,733 {13,228)

interest 409,803

409,803
Total Expenditures 471 -

{$20,000) ($421,030) ($426,330) ($5,300)

o 114,000 434,274 434,274
Sale of Fi 30,000 46,000 (46,000}
Fund Baianc 325,715 (325,715)
Vandiforgd (49 250) (49,250}

%
1

r Fir ancing Sources (Uses)

$803,181

3473,053

End of Year, June 30 LB

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 7

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2013

Enterprise Funds
Major Fund Major Fund Non-major Fund

Internal

Utility Landfill Transportation Totals Service Fund
ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $518,475 $245,064 $29,151
Receivables, Net 710,930 35,453
Due From Cther Governments 42,646 13,331

Due From Other Funds

811 725 17,633

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricied Cash and Cash Equivalents $6,605,362 $6,605,362
Capitat Assels:
Land, Improvements, and Constructon in Progress 225471 383,905
Other Capitat Assets, Net of Depreciation 38,206,603 $257.876 38,664,812
Total Capital Assets $38,422,074 $257,876 $38,048,717 $0
Total Noncurrent Assets $257,876 $45,554,079 $0

e

TOTAL ASSETS 037.25

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:

Current Liabilifies:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilittes $13,535 $8,818 $118,949 $138,258
Due to Other Funds & 18,079 90,767 58,759 1,067,605
Accrued Interest Payable 65,720 65,720
Customer Deposits 138,911 138,911
lnstallment Purchase Contract Payable 188,018 188,018
Ctean Water Bond Loan Payable 172,232 172,232
General Obligation indebthness 159,000 159,000
DWSRF Rewolving Loan w 75,000

Total Current Liabili

Noncurrent Liabifities:

TOTAL LIAB!LlTIES

Landfill Closure and; $1,089,255 $1,089,256
$29,584 7,082 $19,455 56,121

73516 25,307 11,106 109,929

1,050,480 1,050,480

1,550,091 1,550,004

12,504,000 12,504,000

‘! 200, {JOG

1 200 000

Net Position:

Net Invesimentin Capital Assels $21,533,252 $258,767 $257,876 $22,042,895

Restricted for Alternative Water Supply 5,851,595 5,851,596

Restricted for Capital Projects 466,908 466,908

Restricted for USDALoan Payments 147,948 147,948

Unrestricted 900 282 (914 565) (10,118} (24 401) {$109, 107)
N EE S ; 2 e

~ Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 8

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Enterprise Funds
Major Fund  Major Fund Non-major Fund Internal

Utility Landfili Transportation Totals Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Waier and Sewer Sales $1,979,601 ;,g‘é 1,979,601
Water and Sewer Tap Fees and Senice Charges 26,899 E
Landfill Fees $630,875
County Contributions $1,487,708

Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Employee Benefits $465,541 18 $943,903
Supplies and Fuel 175,837 70,403 273,535
Maintenance 110,731 17,561 186,970
Contracted Senices 150,264 302,244
Professionat Senices 69 253 98,956
Water Purchased 426 868 ﬁw 426,868
ManagementFee - County ; 164,128
Utlities 16,425 1,986 169,583
Sewer Charges - Town of Farmille 191,895
Office Expense 9,712 70,342
Insurance 8,000 28,610
Telephone and Postage 5,142 2,534 7,676
Miscellaneous i 3,426 14,547 18,276
Disposai Fees 121,569 121,569
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 5 92,912 . o92912

$1,616,444

Medical Claims
Depreciation

934 75%
Total Operating Expense g Loy

34, 522

1,024,180
Operating Encom Loss)

$574 $106 $30 $709 $100

729,390 729,390
412,704 412,704
2,645 2,545

100 100

Income (E_oss) Before Contributions and Transfers ($145,594)  ($93.024) ($265,812)

Transfers (To) From Other Funds (327,520) (327,520)

Capital Confributions 196,520 196,520
Change in Net Position ($473,114)  ($93,024) ($69,292) {$635,430) {$128,636)
Total Net Position, Beginning 28,272,353 (562,774) 317,050 28,026,629 19,529
Prior Period Adjustment (See Note HI-B} 100,746 100,748
Total Net Position, Beginning As Restated 28,373, 099 (662,774) 317, 050 127,375

Total Net Position o 3988006

mﬁ’_z.mmvﬁ’

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancxai statements
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EXHIBIT 9

Page 1 of 2

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
Enterprise Funds
Major Fund  Major Fund Non-major Fund Internal
Utility Landfilt  Tra nsportatton Totals Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Regeived From Cusfomers $1,931 ,'340 $685,916 $2,826,806  §1487,708
Cash Paid for Goods and Senvices (1,568,054) (423,242} :(2,105433)  (1,584,767)
(941,677)

Cash Paid fo Employees for Senices {457,289) (179,838}

Customer Deposits Received 22,250 22,250
Customer Deposits Returned (15,010 (15,010
Other Operating Revenues 267,821 267, 821

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in (Repayment of) Due to Other Funds ($2,312)
Restitution 2545
NCDOT Grinding 100
Aiternalive Water Supply Fees 1,122,027

Transfers (To) From Other Funds
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

(327,520)

Acguisition and Construction of Capitat Assets {$136,302)
Inferest Pald On indebledness {635,533) (835,533)
Principal Paid On Indebledness & {800,150) (895,150)

Capital Confributions-Siate and Federal Granis F $196,520 196,520
Net Cash Provided by (Used by} Capital and

Related Financing Activities

($589,846)  $83,274 ($12497)  (5519,069)  ($96,959)

7,713,683 161,790 79,620 7,955,093 126,110

Cash conigists of the following:

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents $518,4756  $245,064 $67,123 $830,662 $29,151
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Customer Deposits 138,911 138,911
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Alternative Water Supply 5,851,596 5,851,595
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - GUC Waterline Phase 1A 262,433 262433
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - GUC Waterline Phase 1C 204,475 204,475
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - USDA Loan Payments 147,248 147,948

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 9

Page 2 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
Enterprise Funds
Major Fund Major Fund Non-major Fund Internal
Utility Landifill Transportation Totals Service Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) fo Nef Cash Provided by
Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) ($647,762)  ($95,774) } ($128,736)

Adjustments fo Reconcife Operating Income (Loss) fo Netf Cash
Provided by Cperaling Aclivities:
Depreciation $934.751 $34,522
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 92912
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease {Increase} in Accounts Receivable

$1,024,150
92,912

2,297 (164,638)

Decrease {Increase} in Due From Other Governments 147,017
Increase (Decrease} in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabiliies 2,606 {44,682) $31,677
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposils 7,240
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payabie (? 914} : {5,356) {21,546)
Increase (Decrease) in Other Postemployment Benefits , 16 68 B, 235 2,371 23,772
Total Adjustments - $56,795  $1,064,225

$178 610

$31, 677
Net Cash Provided by {Used by) Operating Activities
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EXHIBIT 10

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due From Other Govemments

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities:

intergovemmental Payable $172,548
Total Liabilities - e

Net Position:
Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefii

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Greene County and its component units conform to generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to governments. The following is 2 summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The County, which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, is one ofithe 4100 counties established
in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-10. As required
principles, these financial statements present the County and its component un
which the County is financially accountable.

provide and maintain sewer service for the school system and County reside
has been combined with the Utility Fund in the County’s financial statement

ﬁ'&»«

year, the County changed the name of nts Regional Water Fund to the Greene

businesses for economic development purposes. Th
balances; therefore, it is not presented in the basic fina
Board}, which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it
presentation). The blended presentation method presents

Separate Financial
Statements

Component Unit | Reporting
Method

Greene County cEs 162A-89], the County's
Water & Sewer Blended CQ oners also serve as the governing None issued
District | j :

Greene County “The Authority is governed by a seven-member board
Industrial Discrete’ amissioners that is appointed by the county None issued

Facility and mrhissioners.  The County can remove any
Pollution Control commissioner of the Authority with or without cause,
Financing

Authority

The members of the ABC Board's governing board Greene County
are appointed by the County. The ABC Board is ABC Board
required by State statute to distribute its surpluses fo | 217 SE Second St
the General Fund of the County. Snow Hill, NC 28580

overnment-wide Statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activilies display information
about the primary government net position (the County) and its component units. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type aclivities of the County., Governmental activiies generally are financed fhrough taxes,
intergovernmentai revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County's governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been
reversed for the Statement of Activities. Program revenues include {a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues, g i

Fund Financial Statemenfs: The fund financial statements provide informati
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statemen
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fu
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate columniz
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund cperating revenues, such as charges for servi -
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transaction5:> n which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operaling revenues, sucf 55 subsidi , result from non-exchange transactions.
Other non-operating items such as investment earnings are<gncillary a ivities.

The County reports the following major governmental fygpds: =

nd. It sccounts for all financial resources of the general
nother fund.

General Fund — This is the County's primary operating
government, except those required to be account

Infermediate School Capifal Project Fund

his fund s used to account for the construction of the new
Intermediate School. ;

Srom e :‘ployer and employees and to account for said employees, their spouses and dependents.

&

ency Funds - Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results.
Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains six
Agency Funds: the Municipal Tax Fund, which accounts for motor vehicle property taxes that are billed and
collected by the County for the various municipalities within the County; the Social Services Fund, which accounts
for moneys deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefi of certain individuals; the Jail inmate
Fund which accounts for funds held on behalf of the inmates of the Greene County Jail, the Fines and Forfeitures
Fund, which accounts for various legal fines and forfeitures that the County is required fo remit to Greene County
Board of Education and the three percent interest on the first month of delinguent motor vehicle taxes that the
County is required to remit to the North Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles; the South Greene Water Collection
Fund which accounts for water funds collected and remitted under a coniract basis on behalf of South Greene
Water Corporation; and the Cooperative Extension Fund which accounts for funds received and expensed relating
to agriculture-sponsored events.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Nonmajor Funds — The County maintains ten legally budgeted funds. The Fire District Funds, the Property
Revaluation Fund, the Emergency Telephone System Fund, the Aprii 2011 Tornado Fund, the Hurricane Irene
Fund, the 2011 Community Deveiopment Biock Grant Project Fund, and the 2012 Community Development
Block Grang Project Fund are reported as non-major special revenue funds.

The School Capital Finance Fund, the American Prawn Cooperative Project Fund and the Jail Construction /
Courthouse Renovation Project Fund are reported as capital project funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are
the modified accrual basis of accounting.

and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the econorm
for the agency funds which have no measurement focus.

ves (or receives) value without directly receiving
grants entlﬂements and donations. On an

Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues i

Proprietary funds dsstmgunsh' 0
and expenses generalfy result

iding services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
yeratnons The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds

ﬁd’anancia! Stat@ments. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial

Adebt, S%Ems and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
hey have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
rdceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
Sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 20 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible
to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered fo be an available
resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina.
Effective with this change in the law, Greene County is responsible for hilling and collecting the property taxes on
all registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County. For those motor
vehicles registered under the staggered system and for vehicles newly registered under the annual system,
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. BUDGETARY DATA

property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicies are registered. The billed taxes are
applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March 2012
through February 2013 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Uncollected taxes that were billed during
this period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of
resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utitities franchsse tax coEiected and held by the

Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expendit
all other grant requirements have been satisfied.
p &

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain progra imbination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenu en program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net pos:t:on available, fo finance the program. It is the
Countys policy fo first apply cost-reimbursement grant resourdes ch programs followed by categorical block
grants, and then by general revenues.

The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolma General Statutes. An annual budget is
adopted for the General Fund, the Fire Districts, Fund_s Property Revaluation Fund, Emergency Telephone

revenue Fund, the School Capital Finance FLj tEnterprise Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at
2012 CDBG Special Revenue Fund, the Courthouse

| accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed
all annualty budgeted funds and at ’she project level for the multi-year

" than $5,000. The governing board must approve all amendments. During the
0. Ahe ongmat budget were necessary. In the Generai Fund, revenues and

)3

BILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND QUTFLOWS, AND FUND EQUITY

A!F/deposits of the County and Greene County ABC Board are made in board-designated official depositories
» and are secured as required by G.S. 159-31. The County and the ABC Board may designate, as an official

depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the
County and the ABC Board may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United
States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the
State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority;
obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and
bankers’ acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).
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The County and the ABC Board's investments are caried af fair value as determined by quoted market
prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Pertfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund,
are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’'s securities are
valued at fair value. Money market investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of
one year or less are reported at amortized cost.

2. Use of Estimates

ting principles requires
nts and disclosures.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepteéi ac
management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect the report
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

vesimeni and {0 maximize
demand deposits and are

e iwconsiders demand deposits and
investments purchased with an original matuﬂiy of th e month less, which are not limited as to use, to be
cash and cash equivalents. ?

The County pools moneys from several funds fo facilitate disbur
investment income. Therefore, ali cash and investments are

4. Restricted Assets

addition, there is $466,908 in unexpended:Water Construction Project funds that is restricted to the purpose
for which it was borrowed or received.=Cu: sits in the amount of $138,911 held by the county

before any services are supplied arefest jcteditd the service for which the deposit was collected. Money in
the Tax Revaluation Fund in the amotint of $472 is classzfied as restncted assets because its use is restncted

tr:bted per NC G.8. 159-18 through 22. Money in the amounts of
tleSMand $147,948 for Busmess—‘{ype Activities are restricted for principal

Staté.daw [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on
smotor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
; however, penzliies and interest do not accrue until the following January 6. These
"the assessed values as of January 1, 2012, As allowed by State law, the County has
chedule of discounts that apply fo taxes that are pald prior to the due date. in the County's

accounts This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior
|, years.

7. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

The inventory of the ABC Board is valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. This
inventory consists of items held for resale. The cost of the inventory in the ABC Board Is recorded as an
expense as it is sold.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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8. Capital Asseis

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Minimum capitalization costs are as
follows: land, $1; Buildings, improvements, substations, lines and other plant and distribution systems,
$5,000; infrastructure, $5,000; furniture and equipment, $5,000; vehicles, $5,000; and Computer Equipment
and Software, $5,000. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Greene County Board of Education properties
capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit in
acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to recej
construct:on costs. Agreements between the County and the Board

agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requiremen
capital assets in the financial statements of the Greene

Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a stfa over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 50
Distribution Systems 50
Iimprovements 25
Furniture and Ecguipm } 10
; 5
5

Years
30-40
10

‘ sta’{ements of financial position wiil sometimes report a separate section for
urces. This separate fmancaai statements eiement Deferred Qutflows of Resources

. foes. jThIS separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, which represents an
cquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.
he County has only two items that meet the criterion for this category — taxes receivable and prepaid taxes.

10. Long-Term Obligations

“In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, fong-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as
an other financing source.

11. Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County and the ABC Board provide for the accumulation of up to thirty days
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County’s government-wide
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and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments
are recorded as the leave is earned. For the ABC Board, the amount is not deemed fo be material.

The sick leave policies of the County and the ABC Board provide for an unlimited accumulation of earned
sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may
be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since neither the County
nor the ABC Board has any obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken no accrual for sick
leave has been made by the County or its component unit.

12. Net Position/Fund Balances

Net Position

capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net
are either a) extemally imposed by creditors, granio
Fund Balances

in the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance’ s composed of five classifications designed to
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed o fgnd balance can be spent.

'h!S classification includes revenue sources that are resfricted fo specific
sed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restrictet for Register of Deeds — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source to pay for
co{}aputer equipment and imaging technology for the Register of Deeds office.

Restricted for Health Department — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source to provide
esources for the Health Department.

Restricted for Sheriff Department — portion of fund balance that is restricted by federal statute to Law
Enforcement expendiiures.

Restricted for Emergency Telephone — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source to
provide resources for Emergency Telephone / E911 operations.

Restricted for Capital QOutlay — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for future
capital projects.

Restricted for USDA Loan Payments — portion of fund balance that is restricted by debt covenants with
USDA for future payments on Long-term Debt.
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Committed Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purpose imposed by
majority vote of Greene County’s governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). Any changes
or removal of specific purposes requires majority action by the governing body.

Committed for Tax Revaluation — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for Tax Revaluation.

Assigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that the County governing board h?s budgeted.

&

special revenue funds.

Assigned for Capital Project Funds - portion of fund batance that
capital project funds.

specific purposes or other funds.

vides guidance for programs with multiple revenue

Greene County has a revenue spending policy thaf”
flowing”

sources, The Finance Officer will use resources in th
State funds, local non-city funds, and county funds.
expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by committed fund balance,
assigned fund balance, and lastly, unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority to

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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E. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position.
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental

funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. The net adjustment of ($8,499,922) consists of several elements as folléws;»

Description

Capital assets used in governmentat activifies are not financial resources
and are therefore not reported in the funds (total capital assets on

government-wide statement in governmental acthities column) $23,203,565

Less Accumulated Depreciation 6,066,078
Net Capital Assets $17,137,487
81,202
424 307
fund statements:
Loans, notes, and in (23,955 437)
{398,052)
(178,148)
(1,087,169)
(415,007)

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a

reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. There are several

elemenis of that total adjustment of ($15,641,321) as follows:
Description
Capital outlay expendifures recorded in the fund statements but
capitalized as assets in the statement of activiies

Depreciation expense, the aliocation of those assets over their useful lives

Amount

1,669,355

that is recorded on the statement of activities but notin the fund stateme (506,813}
New debt issued during the year is recorded as a source of funds oni-fhé tz_nd
statements; it has no effecton the statements of acﬁ\.é%igsﬁ
government-wide statement of net position & (3,843,361}
Principal payments on debtowed are recorded as a use Gfunds ¥ the fund
statements but again affect onlythe statement of net posili
government-wide statements 5 & 515,843
Expenses reported in the statement of
current resources fo pay are not record
{74,983)
{11,000)
13,504
“gjiopﬁ“’s accrued in the government-wide statemenis butnotthe
bgzé@use it does not use current resources (20,909)
ents but notthe fund statements because it does notuse current resources (223,966}
(128,636)
. Special ltem - Greene Counly Intermediate School Donated Asset (12,881,547)
Revenues reported in the statement of aclivities that do not provide cusrent
resources are notrecorded as revenues in the fund statements
Reversal of deferred tax revenue recorded at 7/01/12 (5636,515)
Increase in deferred inflows of resources - faxes receivable - at end of year 424,307

Decrease in accrued interest on taxes receivable for year ended 8/30/13
Total Adjustment
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. SIGNIFICANT VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes

1.

Due to certain deficiencies in its accounting system, the County is not in comphance with NCGS 159-25(a)(1)
which requwes units of government to malntatn thesr fmanc;al statementswm ccordance with generally

the aid of the consultant and oufside classes, the County plans to i
current Interim Finance Officer.

013 fiscal year until July 2, 2012. NCGS
ays after the budget is presented fo the

The County did not adopt the budget ordinance for tbe une
159-13(a) requires that the budget be adopted no edrli
board and no later than July 1 of the upcoming fiscal ye

The County assumed that since July 1 was a Sunday that they had until Monday, July 2 {o adopt the budget.
The County now understands this not to be the cas >and will ensure budget is adopted prior to the start of
the new year in the future.

as‘of June 30, 2013. This deficit is a result of preliminary costs related to the Jail Construction part of this

. project being scrapped. The County had to incur these costs again after going back to the drawing board and

as a result, a deficit in fund balance has occurred.

2. The Enterprise Fund net position consists of the following individual fund net position balances:

Utility Fund $28,899,985
Landfif Fund {655,798) *
Transportation Fund 247,758

. 28401945

Effective July 1, 2009, the County reduced the number of hours of service, thereby reducing the attendanis’
contracts. It was anticipated that this change should allow the Landfill Fund to at least begin to break even.
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C. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the County's expenditures have exceeded amounts budgeted in the
following funds and departments:

Final Over
Budget Actuat Budget

General Fund

Administration $199,434 ($5,320)

Public Buildings $496,282 ($648)

Recreation $268,681 ($2,726)

Transfers Out $421,030 ($5,300)
Fire District Funds $623,935 (347 494)
Jail Construction / Court House Renovation Project Fund

Owner's Rep Contract ($4,160)
Etitity Fund

Transfers Out $780,385 ($33,726)
Utility Alternative Water Supply Capital Reserve Fund

Debt Service - Phase 1C Interest Paymenis $967 ($967)

Professional Services £63,934 ($4,375)
Alternative Water Phase 1C Project Fund

Fransfer to GC - Alternative Water Supply Fund $350,763 ($183,632)

These over-expenditures occurred becausehﬁfﬁ’"éj@et mendments were not adopted in a tsmefy manner for
certain expenditures. The County has

expendsiures do not occur, The acco

the Finance Officer would be alfowe At
the pre-audit certificate and avajlable fu
and the Interim Finance:Offi e closely monitoring the financials for potentaa| problem areas. The County
Manager has the authorityito m V. funds within departmental budgets to line items that will heed additional
funds. Budget amendme jeing submitted to the Board of Commissioners at each regular

been instructed to closely monitor thelr budgets for potential problem

areas and report 1!
established. All

-of the County's and the ABC Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two
méthods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level
- are coilateralized with securities held by the County's or the ABC Board's agents in these units' names. Under
the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities heid by
the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the County and the ABC Board, these deposits are considered to be held by their agents
in the entities' names. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for
non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using
the Pooling Method report fo the State Treasurer the interest adequacy of their pooled collateral covering
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the County or the ABC Board
or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the
County or the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collaterization, and this risk
may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict
standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.
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The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions.
The County and the ABC Board rely on the State Treasurer to monitor these financial institutions. The County
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the County. The County complies
with the provisions of G.8. 158-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are
properly secured. The County and the ABC Board do not have formal pelicies regarding custodial credit risks
for deposits.

336,587 and a bank balance of
$4,497, 685 Of the bank balance, $2,670,412 was covered by federal depo ;pry' rance and $1,827,253
was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. g

At June 30, 2013, Greene County had $1,723 cash on hand.

At June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of deposits for Greene Coun
balance was 33_1 70,280, Of this balance, $170,280 was coveresd™
balance was maintained in financial institutions utilizing thePoeling M
At June 30, 2013, the ABC Board had $600 cash ons

Investments

Reported Value Fair Value
$6,354,548 $6,354,548
1,084,648

NC Capital Management Trust - Alte
Total investments

g credit risk. At June 30, 2013, the ABC Board had no investments in thé
nt Trust,

b"een recorded in the financial statements.

Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2009 $458,172 $108.816 5566,988
2010 460,087 67,863 527,950
2011 462,349 26,585 488,934
2012 463,184 26,633 489,817
Total Eeerte o e e Drrevealleee v e
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4. Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2013, were as follows:

Taxes and
Related Due From Due From
Accrued Other Component
Accounts Inferest Governments .. Unit Total
Governmental Activities:
General $678,758 $613,231 $770,9% é 4 2;1;,722 $2,084,622
Other Governmental 22,035 41,164 1 ‘13,780 W/ 176,979
Total Receivables $700,793 $654,305 T $21,722  $2,261,601
Allowance for Doubtiul Accounts (164,000) {148,886)

{312, 886)
Total Governmental Activities &

.Business-type Activities:

Utitity Fund $798,930 $42,646 $841,576
Landfill Fund 1,012 13,331 84,784
Nonmajor Enterprise Aclivilies N 20,897 20,897
Total Receivables $799,942° $70,441 $76,874 %0 $047,257

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Total Business-type Activities

(36,000) (124,000)

nty consists of the following:

$395,889

180,257

283,237

22,607

263

2,438

$384,691

Sérap Tire Tax $7,104
White Goods 1,672
Solid Waste 2,129
Transportation Grants 20,837
Altemative Water Supply Fees 21,939
Joint Deposit - Town of Farmille 10,000
Sales Tax 13,393

Total Enterprise Fund '”MW
Totai Due Ty =

Notes Receivable

The County has four loans from Global Transpark Development Zone Loan Funds. The purpose of the loans
is to increase the County tax base and create jobs. The subsequent repayment of these loans will likewise
be restricted.

The first loan was made on September 20, 2004 to NWL Capacitators for $250,000. NWL operates an
elecironic capacitator manufacturing facility. NWL has used the funds fo expand their building. The terms of
the loan call for 60 payments of $5,373 for 15 years, including interest at 3.5%.

37



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

The second loan was made on November 9, 2007 to Moore’s Fiberglass for $140,000. Moore's Fiberglass is
a frade contractor that intends to use the funds fo create additional jobs. The terms of the loan call for 28
guarterly payments of $5,829 for 7 years, including interest at 4.75%.

The third loan was made on May 20, 2009 to Vandiford's Country Kitchen for $100,000. Vandiford's operated
a dining facility that relocated fo Snow Hill from Hookerton. The terms of the loan call for 1 interest-only
payment and 19 quarterly payments of principal and interest of $5,875 for 4‘/2 years, including interest at
4.50%. As of June 30, 2011, Vandiford's had made only one payment. Notlce”h been given fo Vandiford's
to bring the loan current by January 1, 2011. i the loan was not brought @ that date foreclosure
proceedlngs would be lmtiated Cn Apni 12, 201'E order to sale secured co f?recorded in Lenoir

Z Ribeye's is a local restaurant
en building. The terms of the

The fourth foan was made on April 9, 2012 fo Ribeye’s Steakhouse fi
that intends to use the funds to relocate to the former Vandiford’ s C
loan call for 20 quarterly payments of $2,793 for 5 years mcluf

The following summarizes the expected collection on

Principatl
Amounts Due
For the Year

Ended

June 30, Ribeye's Total
2014 $9,606 540,750
2015 10,045 39,836
2018 10,505 29,383
2017 8,193 27,837
2018 20,442

201 9—2020 32,228

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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6. Capital Assets

Primary Government
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases  «DéCreases Balances

iy

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $628,982
Construction in Progress 12,827,219
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

$628,982

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings & Land improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buitdings & Land Improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capifal Assels Being Depreciated, Ne

Governmental Activity Capital Assets, Net

56 $19,563,226
10,711 $21,403 1,303,383

11,000

$379,651 $3,589,644

65,114 $21,403 1,046,121
1,368,265 62,048 1,430,313
353;30,668 : : $6,066,078

' 16,508,505

$324,118
92,294

General Government
Public Safety

Human Senviceg;
Cultural and Recreafiona

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Business Type Activities: Beginning Ending
Greene County Utiiity Fund: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land $178,048 $22,500 $201,448

Construction In Progress 114 933 $90 9?0 24, (}23
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated By e e '
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Transfer Distribution Sysfems $45,372,148 $90,910 $45 463,058
Equipment 228078 228,078
Vehicles

246,953
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated A
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Transfer Distribution Systems $6,401,906 59 $7,316,301
Equipment 190,086 8.5¢ 198,665
Vehicles 5 233412
Total Accumulated Depreciation $7,748,378

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 38,206,603

Greens County Utility Fund Capitat Assets, Net

Greene County Landfill Fund;
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land and improvements

Total Capital Assefs Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buiidings
Vehicles
Equi pmeﬂt

$158,434

" $108.102
279,245

$108,102
279,245

Buildings 107,322 $108,102
Vehicles 229,975 250,041
Equipment 462,186 475,861

$799,483 | $834,004

134 854

$169,900 $169,900
406,168 406,168

11,466 - 11,466
v

s Accumulated Depreciation for:

Bunldmgs $42,718 $8,495 $51,213
Vehicles 220,598 46,382 266,980

Equipment 11 465 11,465
Total Accumulated Depreciation 5 i $329,658
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net

Greene County Transportation Fund Capital Assets, Net

Business-type Activities Capifal Assets, Net
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Construction Commitments

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2013. The projects include the Iniermediate
School project and the Alternative Water Phase 1C, and 1G projects. At June 30, 2013, the Government's
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Spent to Date Commit:g,ent

Alternative Water Phase 1C $11,756,765
Altemative Water Phase 16 47 633
Total 04308

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Ending
Decreases Balances
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $12,055

Total Assets Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated £

$54,642
52 652_

Less Accumulated Depreciation fol
Buildings
Eguipment
Total Accumulated Depreciatio

Total Capital Assets BeJ e

Total Capital Asse

B. LIABILITIES®
1. Payaf?[ei

$49,942 $50,166
_ 38_296 41 457

Accrued
Vendors Interest Total
Governmental Activities:
- General $432,879 $415,007 $847,886

Other Governmentat 59 454 59,454
Total Governmental Activities i ' = EErene ]

Business-fype Activities:
Utility Fund $86,596 $65,720 $162,316
Landfill Fund 13,535 13,535
Nonmajor Enterprise Activities

Total Business-type Activities
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2. Pension Plan Obligations and Other Postemployment Benefits

a.

b.

Local Governmental Employee's Retirement Sysfem

Plan Description. Greene County and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authoritysto establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Logal ernmental Employees’
Retirement System is lnchded in the Comprehenswe Annual Financial

for LGERS. That report may be obtained by Wﬂtmg to the Office of th
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (819) 981-

empioyees ﬂOt engaged in law enforcement Vis’
requirements of members and of the County and the

176, and $390,020, respectively. The ABC Board’s
30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $1,283, $1,426, and
$1,248, respectively. The contributior the County and the ABC Board equaled the required

contributions for each year.

3

Law Enforcement Officers’ Spetial g‘%?ation Allowance

1. Plan Descriptiof:

Greene County admini
employer defi @é“d be

Retirees Receivng Benefits 0
Terminated Plan Members Entitled but not yet Receiving Benefits 0
Active Plan Members

Total

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go
basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used fo Value Investments. No funds are set aside to pay benefils and administration costs.
These expenditures are paid as they come due.
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Contributions

The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-you-go basis through appropriations made in the
General Fund operating budget. For the current year, the County contributed $0, or 0% of annual
covered payroll. The County’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended
by the North Carolina General Assembly.

determined using the market value of investments. The uni ihded , rial accrued hability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a 5. The remaining amortization
period at December 31, 2011 was 190 years,

Annuat Required Contribution $22,226
terest on Net Pension Obligation 6,816
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribut (8,133)
Annuai Pension Cost $20,909

Contributions Made
$20,909

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Cost (APC) APC Contribution Obligation
j $20,246 0.00% $136,328
= B/30/12 $20,909 0.00% $157,237
6/30/13 $20,909 0.00% $178,148

tinded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0 percent funded.
The actuarial accrued Hability for benefits was $145,568 and the actuarial value of assets was $0,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $145,568. The covered payroll (annual
payroil of active employees covered by the plan) was $812,285, and the ratio of the UAAL fo the
covered payroll was 17.92 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued lability
for benefits.
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C.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Ptan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The
Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S.
Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Suppiemental Ret:rement Income Plan for Law Enforcemeﬂnt Oﬁ" jcers is mcluded in the

includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcemen
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Servi

Contributions for the year ended
ounty and $43,013 from the law

law enforcement officers may make volun’tary contribuii
June 30, 2013 were $91,546, which consisted of

Plan Description. Greene Counly also contnbutes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension
Fund ("Fund”), a noncon’enbutory, defined contf’butlon pension plan adrmmstered by the North Carolina

rnment Empioyees’ Retirement System (LGERS) or
an equivalent locally sponsored plan é\r‘t sle 3 of . Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the ‘erthjCarohna Genefal Assembly The Register of Deeds'

State of North Carglina.
information for the Reg
writing to the Office of e :

AFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
eeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by
& Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27689-1410,

R

d origs héif percent (1 .5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of G.S.
waotfowmg January 1 of each year, the Department of State Treasurer dmdes ninety-

Healthcare Benefifs

Plan Description. Under the terms of a County resolution, the County administers a single-employer
defined Healthcare Benefits Plan {the HCB plan). As of November 5, 2001, this plan provides
postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees of the County, provided they participate in the Local
Government Employees’ Retirement System (System) and have at least five (5) years of creditable
service with the County. Prior to November 5, 2001, employees were not gualified for benefits. The
County pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits through private insurers. The County’s
retirees cannot purchase additional coverage for their dependents at the County's group rates. The
Board of Commissioners may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for the
plan.
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Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2010, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retirees and Dependents Receiving Benefils
Terminated Plan Members Entitled but not yet Receiving Benefits
Active Plan Members

Total

Funding Policy. The County pays the full cost of coverage for t
qualified retirees under a County resolution that can be amend
chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go basis.{

dthe current year, the County
unty obtains healthcare coverage
ibutions;” under a County resolution, for
forcement officers represented .42% and
contributions made by employees. The

contributed $60,194 or 99% of annual covered
through private insurers. The County's requir
employees not engaged in law enforcement

25% of covered payroli, respectively. There
County s obligation o contribute to the HCB Pla
of Commissioners. P

Summary of Significant Accounrmg Rolicies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the
General Fund, which is maintaineds dified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set
aside to pay benefits and admini 2These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OFPEB Cost and Nm ‘
calcuiated based on th

represents a level o

year and amortize:d
ihirty years.

Required Contribution $306,5687

rest an OPEB Obligation 30,101
iustment to Annual Required Contribution {28,756)
Annual OPEB Cost (expense) $307,932
Contributions Made (60,194)
Increase {Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation $247,738
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 949 360

Net OPERB Obligation - End of Year
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The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the pian, and
the net OPEB obligation for 2012 were as follows:

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) APC Contribution Obligation
6/30/11 328,830 18.23% 752,542
6/30/12 307,932 36.08% 949,360
6/30/13 307,832 19.55% 1,197,008

Funded Stafus and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2010, the
date, the plan was 100 percent not funded. The actuarial accrued i Eslaty fs

o

was 36.81%.

he. value of reported amounts and
pte far Ahto the future. Examples include
re trends Amounis determined regarciing

Actuanal valuations of an ongoung plan mvolveﬁg

nd hea
the funded status of the plan and the annual regui
continual revision as actual results are compared
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, dsented as required supplementary information
foEEownng the notes to the financial statem ts, (aﬂer the initial year of implementation) presents
actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or
ued liabilities for benefits.

time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
and the plan members at that point. The actuarial me’thods and

ncreaée of 10.5 to 5.0 percent annually. The invesiment rate ancluded a 3% percent inflation
jon. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the
effécts of short-term volatility in the market vaiue of investments over a 5 year period. The UAAL is
g amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining
dmortization period at December 31, 2010, was 30 years.

ther Employment Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Pian for
members of the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries
of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or
who die within 180 days after refirement or termination of service and have at least one year of
contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump
sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months’ salary in a
row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit will be a minimum of $25,000
and will not exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the postemployment benefit
amount and the other benefit amount, The County considers these contributions {o be immaterial.
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Closure and Postclosure Care Costs - Landfill

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfill when it siops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and menitoring functions at the site for thirty years after
closure, Although closure and postolosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill
stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The
$1,089,255 reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at June%??s;\/zom represents the net
cumulative amount reported to date, based on the use of 100% of the fotal esti

The County closed the landfill on December 31, 1997 to all forms of trash excep :
has begun to incur actual closure costs. Actual costs may be higher due ioﬁ_'
changes in regulations.

;est thatzls one option under State and
federal laws and regulations that helps determine if a unit i [ ble to meet closure and post closure
care requirements.

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources

statements and unearned revenues on the
Howing elements:

The balance in unavailable or unearned revenues, on the
government-wide statements at year-end is compased of the;

Unavailable Unearned

Revenue Revenue
Taxes Receivable {Net) - General $424,307
Taxes Receivable (Net} - Fire Districts 41,677
Prepald Regular Property Taxes NotYet ¢ $28,420
N ¢

rs apd omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County maintains
surance with a private insurance agency. Through thas company, the County obtams property

e, auto physscai damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value, crime coverage of
L 000 per occurrence, workers' compensation coverage up to the statutory limits.

_ The County maintains a self-insurance plan for the medical benefits provided to their employees. Effective
June 1, 2009, the County established a partially self-funded group health care plan for eligible employees
and covered dependents. This activity is accounted for as an internal service fund. Siop loss insurance has
been purchased to supplement the plan, which will reimburse the County for individual claims exceeding
$50,000 annually, or aggregafe claims exceeding approximately $5,000,000 lifetime. The County became
partially self-funded for the purpose of providing affordable health insurance to its employees while better
managing the costs of health claims.
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The County carties flood insurance through a private insurance agency. The County's insurance policy
provides limited flood coverage in areas outside the 100-year flood zone and is subiect to a per occurrence
deductible of $25,000. Property located within the 100-year flood zone, as desighated by FEMA, is excluded
from coverage. The County has two properties located in areas designated as “B” areas (land not in the 100-
year flood plan but in the 500-year plan). The County has elected not to pursue further insurance coverage
for these two areas.

The County carries commerciai coverage for all other risks of loss. THe dve been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have exceeded coverage in
any of the past three fiscal years. o

auto liability, workers compensatlon and employee health 1 u,:uerage The Board also has liguor legal liability
coverage. There have been no significant reductggns in insurance coverage from the previous year and
settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any e past three fiscal years.

6. Contingent Liabilities

At June 30, 2013, the County was not a ¢
counsel, threatened litigation exasts
the ultimate effect of these legai
position. If litigation occlirs, the

fendanit to any lawsuits. However, according to the County's legal
dpinion of the County’s management and the County attorney,
ersawill not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
i5-will be turned over to the County’s insurance carrier.

7. Long-Term Obligati

a. Note Payabl

_ mdividual for the purchase of the Standard Laconic Building. The obligation requires
0f$20,000 including interest at 5%.

; the Year Ending June 30,

Principal Interest Total
2014 $12,580 $7,420 $20,000
20156 13,223 6,777 20,000
2016 13,800 6,100 20,000
2017 14,611 5,389 20,000
2018 15,359 4,641 20,000

2019-2022

10 296
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b.

Global Transpark Development Zone L oans Payable

The County has borrowed funds from the Global Transpark Development Zone Loan funds generated by
the temporary five-doflar ($5.00) motor vehicle registration tax. These fax proceeds were in turn loaned fo
County businesses for Economic Development.

The first loan was drawn down on September 29, 2004 in the amount of $250

000. The Countys ob!;gatnon
e

interest. The obligation calls for quarterly payments of $5,373, beginning o
on September 1, 2019. The obligation carries interest at 3.5% and th
$119,278.

The second loan was drawn down on November 9, 2008 in the,
obligation under this agreement is limited to the amount of its
principal and interest. The obligation calls for guarterly paymen
and ending on December 1, 2014. The obligation carrigsiinterest a
was $33,5637.

this agreement is limited to the amount of its annual a
The obligation calls for one interest-only payment and
September 1, 2009 and ending on March 1, &
2013 balance was $21,417.

under this agreement is limited to/t
interest. The ob!igation calis for

yments of $2,736, beginning on June 1, 2012 and ending on
st at 3.50% and the June 30, 2013 balance was $38,134.

Principal Interest Total
$70,582 $6,529 $77.111
39,909 4,363 44,262
29,253 3,185 32,438
27,358 2,149 29,607
20,173 1,321 21,484

2019-2020 25,001
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Installment Purchase Contracts

Industrial Park:
On June 14, 2007, the County entered into an installment purchase contract with Branch Banking & Trust
Company for the purpose of acquiring andfor constructing water & sewer utilities and a [ift station for the
industrial Park site. Under the terms of this agreement the bank advanced funds to the County as
construction progressed for the purpose of paying construction costs. This contract is secured by a
promissory note and deed of trust on the property and any improvements thér The County's obligation
under this snstallment purchase confract is limited to the amount of its an’f aE getary appropriation for

$19,716 beginning on December 14, 2007, with the remaining pagn{.,
and interest, due in semi-annua! installments through June 14, ,202
contract balance at June 30, 2013 was $211,498.

npaid installment purchase

During the Year Ending June 30, Totatl
2014 $39,432
2015 39,432
2016 39,432
2017 39,432
2018 39,432
2018-2020

44 596

Ambulance:

purpose of acquur;ng a 2013 FordAn '
~ trust on the property and apiy:.i enis thereon. The County's obligation under this instaliment

t of its annual budgetary approprna’aon for the payment of principal

Year Ending_; June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 $17,335 $1,679 $19,014
2015 17,650 1,355 19,014
2016 17,988 1,026 19,014
2017 18,324 690 19,014

2018 . 1 8,894 320 19,014

Jail Consiruction:

On December 9, 2010, the County refinanced $10,500,000 interim financing for the Jail Construction with
three loans from USDA. The terms of each agreement calls for one annual payment of interest only on
December 9, 2011, Beginning DRecember 9, 2012 the County will make one annual payment of principal
and interest of $373,554, $119,083, and $24,070 respectively. These agreements carry an Interest rate
of 3.75%. The balances at June 30, 2013 were $7,486,171, $2,319,537, and $483,397, respectively.
During the refinancing process, $771,686 went from Greene County back to the USDA. These funds
were subsequently available for drawdown and have now been drawn down on the capital project related
to courthouse renovations. The County reserved an additional $51,697 for debt service during the
current year. The total amount set aside for debt service is $129,205 at June 30, 2013, which satisfies
the USDA requirements.
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Loan 1 :
During the Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2014 $92,225 $281,329 $373,554
2015 95,683 277,871 373,554
2016 99,271 373,554
2017 102,994 373,654
2018 . 106,856 373,554
20192023 597,480 1,867,770
2024-2028 718,231 1,867,770
2029-2033 863,385 1,867,770
2034-2038 1,037,875 1,867,770
2039-2043 1,247,630 1,867,770
2044-2048 1,499,775 1,867,770
2049-2051

1,103,740

Loan 2:
During the Year Ending June 30, Interest Total

2014 $89,683 $119,083

2015 30,503 88,580 119,083

20186 31,647 87,436 119,083

2017 32,833 86,250 119,083

34,065 85,018 116,083

190,470 404,945 595,415

228,965 366,450 585,415

275,238 320,177 595,415

330,863 264,552 505,415

397,732 197,683 505,415

478,113 117,302 505,415

F
ing the Year Ending June 30,

1,708

6,878

Principal Interest Total

2014 $5,943 $18,127 $24,070

2015 6,165 17,805 24,070

2016 6,397 17,673 24,070

2017 6,637 17,433 24,070

2018 6,885 17,185 24,070
2019-2023 38,499 81,851 120,350
2024-2028 46,279 74,071 120,350
2029-2033 55,634 64,716 120,350
2034-2038 66,876 53,474 120,350
2039-2043 80,393 39,957 120,350
2044-2048 96,641 23,709 120,350
2049-2051
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School Construction; :
As authorized by State law [G.8. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County is financing the construction of
an intermediaie school for use by the Greene County Board of Education. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011 the County entered into two instaliment purchase conifracts which will eventually total
$13,600,000. The installment purchases were Issued pursuant to a deed of trust that requires that legal
title remain with the County as long as the debt is outstanding. The County has entered info a lease with
the Greene County Board of Education that transfers the rights and responsibilities for maintenance and
insurance of the property to the Board of Educatlon The lease caEEs for nbm il annual Eease payments

Sjatement of Net Position
#or debt service during the
june 30, 2013, which satisfies

principal and interest of $337,062, ending February 1%
only $6,205,573 of principal funds. ) ‘

Loan 1:

During the Year Ending June 30, Interest Total
2014 $261,224 $337,062
2015 258,191 337,062
2016 82,026 255,036 337,062
2017 85,367 251,755 337,062
2048 88,720 248,342 337,062

2019—2023 499,754 1,185,556 1,685,310
202¢L2G?8 608,030 1,077,281 1,685,311
739,761 045,549 1,685,310

900,030 785,280 1,685,310

1,095,024 590,286 1,685,310

1,332,265 353,045 1,685,310

427,466 63,629 491 ,095

s of the agreement for loan 2 in the amount of $7,000,000, calls for one interest only payment

ry 17, 2012. Beginning February 17, 2013, the County will make forty annual payments of

and interest of $57,490, ending February 17, 2051, As of June 30, 2013 the County had drawn
00 of principal funds.

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 $80,434 $277.056 $357,490
2015 83,651 273,839 357,490
2016 86,997 270,493 357,400
2017 90,477 267,013 357,490
2018 94,096 263,394 357,490
2019-2023 530,044 1,257,406 1,787,450
2024-2028 644,880 1,142,570 1,787,450
2028-2033 784,593 1,002,857 1,787,450
2034-2038 054,578 832,872 1,787,450
2039-2043 1,161,390 626,060 1,787,450
2044-2048 1,413,008 374,442 1,787,450

2043-2052 998 192 1 080 325
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(Reported In Enterprise Funds)
Utility Fund

On April 30, 2004 the County enfered into an installment purchase contract with Branch Banking and
Trust Company for the purpose Installing sanitary sewer service to the new Maury Correctional
Institution. The County’s obligation of under this installment purchase contract is limited to the amount of
its annual budgetary appropriation for the repayment of principal and mteres .2Fhe total advanced by the
bank was $2,654,220. Repayment is scheduled for thirty semi-annual p" ents, of $116,000 including
interest at 3.69%, beginning October 30, 2004 through April 30, 2019, ¢

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Total
2014 $188,018 $232,000
2015 232,000
2016 232,000
2017 232,000
2018 232,000
2019

232,000

On May 29, 2008 the County entered into an ﬁ
Trust Company for the purpose of installj
The County’s obligation under this :n
budgetary appropnatton for the re

“and sewer services fo the new Cutter Creek Subdivision.
{Chase contract is limited to the amount of its annual

2003, Greene County entered into a loan agreement with the State of North Carolina to
g %nder the Clean Water Bond Loan Program. The proceeds were used fo construct

y‘stem Principal is due annually on May 1. Interest is accrued at the rate of 5.75% and is
ab sem: annually on May 1 and November 1. The total loan amount advanced to Greene County
as $3,272,415. At June 30, 2013, the balance was $1,772,324.

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total

2014 . $172,232 $92,549 $264,781
2018 172,232 84,136 256,368
2016 172,232 758,722 247,054
2017 172,232 67,308 239,540
2018 172,232 58,895 231,127
2018-2023 ‘ 1,029,435

861,164

53



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

e. Revenue Bonds
On September 23, 2008, the County secured interim financing through the issuance of Bond Anticipation
Note Proceeds for the construction of Water System Improvements. On August 30, 2010, $6,202,000 of
these bonds were issued and the interim financing was satisfied. On August 30, 2011, the remaining
$6,5637,000 was issued and the interim financing was satisfied. The revenue bonds are recorded in the
utility fund and are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County. Principal and
interest payments are appropriated when due. The County reserved an aeid'tlonal $63,820 for debt
service during the current year. The total amount set aside for debt e $147,948 at June 30,
2013, which satisfies the USDA requirements.
The County's revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2013 are compris owing individual issues
by series:
Serviced by the County's Utility Fund;
$4,202,000 Water Revenue Bonds Series 2010A issué%
August 30, 2010, due in annual instaliments throug
June 1, 20580; interest at 4.00%. $4,153,000
$2,000,000 Water Revenue Bonds Series 20108 Lssued
August 30, 2010; due in annual instaliments through
June 1, 2080; interest at 4.00%. 1,973,000
$3,800,000 Water Revenue Bonds Serie
August 30, 2011; due in annual installm
June 1, 2050; interest at 4.125% 3,800,000
$2,737,000 Water Revenue Bonds Series
August 30, 2011, duein
June 1, 2050; interést at 2,737,000
Total | 312663000
Anmnual Debt Serv, ents to maturity for the County’s revenue bonds are as follows:
2010 Series:
During the Principal Interest Total
$79,000 $230,242 $308,242
82,000 227,293 309,293
85,000 224,230 309,230
88,000 221,055 309,055
91,000 217,767 308,767
2019-2023 511,000 1,035,028 1,546,028
2024-2028 614,000 931,965 1,545,065
2020-2033 740,000 807,667 1,547,667
2034-2038 888,000 658,065 1,548,065
20392043 1,067,000 478,070 1,545,070
2044-2048 1,292,060 261,135 1,653,135

2049-2051
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2011 Series:
During_ the Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2014 $80,000 $249,124 $320,124
2015 83,000 246,101 329,101
2016 86,000 328,963

2017 89,000 328,707
2018 93,000 329 336
20192023 517,000
2024-2028 622,000 :
2020-2033 750,000 A 4 1,643,147
2034-2038 905,000 1,643,969
20392043 1,001,000 1,643,853
2044-2048 1,311,000 1,839,179
2(49-20561

$2,274,321
1,087,332
266,989
1,142,668

(327,520)
1,102,137

$638,366
173%

0 years wéth no interest. One principal payment of $75,000 was paid during the vear, leaving a
balance of $1,275,000 at June 30, 2013.

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 575,000 $75,000
’ 2015 75,000 75,000
2016 75,000 75,000
2017 75,000 75,000
2018 75,000 75,000
2019-2023 375,000 375,000
2024-2028 375,000 375,000
2029-2030

150 OOO
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g. Long-term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the County’s long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013:
Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Portion

Governmental Activities:

Notes Payable $157,002 $12.580
Giobal Transpark Development Zone Loans 280,479 70,582
Installment Purchase Contracts 20,180,437 $3,843,361 332,147
Net Pension Obligation 157,237 20,809
QPEB Obligation 863,203 284,161

Compensaled Absences
Total Governmental Activities

411 646 338, 680 £

Business-type Activities:

insiallment Purchase Contract $1.718416 $476,918 $1,236 408 $188,018

Clean Water Bond Loan 1,804,556 172,232 1,722,324 172,232
Revenue Bonds 12,739 OOQ/ 76,000 12,663,000 159,000
DWSRF Rewlhving Loan 1,350,000 5 75,000 1,275,000 75,600

Accrued Landfill Closure and
Postclosure Cosis

OPEB Obligation

Compensated Absences

Total Business-fype Activities

1,089,255
109,928

relates to assets the’ gnty@holds tile. Unspent restricted cash related to this debt amounts 1o
$129,205. ' <

C. iNTERFUN

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund

Uttility Fund ' $255,880
Landfill Fund
General Fund {17,533)

The General Fund loaned the Utility Fund $255,880 back in 2007 to facilitate establishment of the Greene County
Water & Sewer District 1.

The interfund balance of $17,533 owed from the General Fund to the Landfill Fund is a timing difference resulting

from the time lapse between when landfill funds get collected and then moved from the General Fund to the
Landfill Fund.
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. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Operating and equity fransfers to and from funds for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows:

TRANSFERS
FROM TO

General Fund
Alternative Water Supply Fund
Utility Fund

Enterprise Fund
Alternative Water Supply Fund
Utility Fund 18,716

Total Operating Transfers - Other Funds

The transfer from the Alternative Water Supply Fund for '
project funds that were available to be used at the Countyis

The transfer from the Utility Fund for $19,716 was the Utilz
industrial park loan.

South Greene Water Corporation $177,1
turnover worksheei since the April 2011

Business-type

Activities Utility Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted

E Net Position Net Position
Net Position at beginning of year,

as originally stated $29,026,629 $29,272,353

Prior Period Adjustment 100,748 100,746
Net Position at beginning of year,

as restated e a7

Greene County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple revenue sources.
The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, state funds, local
non-city funds, city funds. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are o be spent from
restricted fund balance first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly
unassigned fund balance. The finance officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best
interest of the County.

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General Fund
balance that is avaiiable for appropriatior:
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Total Fund Balance - General Fund $4,276,234
Less:

Stabilization by State Statute 2,150,840
Register of Deeds 43,418
Health Department 386,745
Sheriff Department 35999

Emergency Telephone
Capital Cutlay

Remaining Fund Balance

IV. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The County's governing board is alse responsible for appointi
Housing Authority, but the County’s accountability for this
. appointmen‘is The Authority exists to provide housing assis

V. JOINT VENTURES

The County pa{’eicipates in a joint venture with L

tne 30, 2013. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the County
financial statements for the Library can be obtained by contacting the

The County, in conjunction
Beacon Center for Mental
members of the eightes
because the Center's ¢
State and fed’
equity interest
Center during.the
alcohol ed

e b@; board. The County has an ongoing financial respons;bmty for the joint veniure
ved existence depends on the pariicipating governments’ fundmg in con;unctlcn with the

.%Mentai Health approprsations were suspended for the 2011-2012 fiscal year as well as the 2012-
2013 fisgal® is was done state-wide for all counties. The only appropriations expended during the year were for
the a Hol ition to the ABC Board. Complete financial statements for the Center can be obtained by contacting
r's admsnnstrasrve offices at 500 Nash Medical Arts Mall, Rocky Mount, North Carolina 27804,

ie County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and three other Local Governments, participates in a joint
ire to operate Lencir Community Coliege. The County appoints fwo members of the sixteen member board of
frus ,,ees of the community college. The College is included as a component unit of the State of North Carolina. The
County has the basic responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the community college and also provides
some financial support for the Community College’s operations. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for
the community college because of the statutory responsibilities to provide funding for the community college’s facilities.
The County confributed $227,000 fo the Community College during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The
participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2013. Complete financial statements for the community college may be
obtained from the community college’s administrative offices at PO Box 188, Highway 70 and 58, Kinston, North
Carolina 28502.
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VI. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

Vil

governing board. The County paid membership fees of $6,844 during the fiscal year ende

East Carolina Council Of Governments

The County, in conjunction with eight other counties and fifty municipalities, established the East Carolina Council of
Governments (“Council’). The participating governments established the Council fo coordinate various funding
received from federal and State agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the Councif's

Global TrnsPark Development Conunission

The Global TransPark Development Commission is a corporate body created on Nowé
allow participating counties, including Greene County, which have the potential &
the North Carolina Global TransPark, to create a special economic develp

development within the territorial jurisdiction of the Zone by fosteri
facilities, programs, information and data systems, and infrast
Global TransPark Development Zone.

The Commission is governed by nineteen voting members, cons
of the twelve other participating counties, and two members each app
House of Representatives. The Board of County Commigsionerssof the respective counties appoints the voting
members from each of the counties.

st fund éonsisting of an initial State appropriation of $7.5 million
vehicle llcense fees collected by the Noa’th Carohna Department

The Commission is responsible for a nonexpendabl
and 85% of the quarterly distributions of the $5
of Transportation. The motor vehicle tax was
collected for a period of five years. Th
ioans are made and repaid to &the C,

alance of the trust funds are nonexpendable and will revolve as
t June 30, 2013, the portion of the trust available to be loaned

$863,765
(1,535,000)

incipa Paymenis
inds Available

S’
County persgnnei are’involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations that cause benefit payments
State These amounts disclose this additional aid to Coun’{y recipients that do not appear in the

Federal State
Medicaid $18,574,438 $10,355,515
Women, Infants and Children 377,897
Temporary Assistance For Needy Families 155,060 $8

Other Programs 197, 007' 55,834
Total el ST
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Vill. SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTED PROGRAMS

The County has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements.
Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys o the grantor agencies. Management believes that any
required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanym‘ gncial statements for the
refund of grant moneys.

X. MAJOR ENTERPRISE CUSTOMER

to this customer comprised 45.13% of total billings.

X. CQUTTER CREEK

On March 5, 2008, the County entered into an Infrastructure”]
{LC. Milt Run Development Group. LLC is the entily that has

ement with Mill Run Development Group,
to own, deveiop and sell real property in

agreement state that the County will provide financing fo construct fhe wastewater infrastructure requlred to convey
wastewater from Cutter Creek to the City of Kinston's Wastewater system. The County has undertaken this

regrie County Board of Commissioners voted unanimously to release
hat was prowded by Mill Run DeveEopment Group, LLC for the Cutter

te,7all phases are complete and the County anticipates taking over ownership of these
_”é”totai estimated value of the infrastructure assets is approximately $8,000,000.

The;County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 63, Financial Reporting of
Deferred Qutfliows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and Stalement 65, ltems
Previouslfy reported as Assets and Liabifities, in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. In accordance with GASB
Statement 63, the Statement of Net Assets has been replaced with the Statement of Net Position. ltems on the
Statement of Net Position are now classified into Assets, Deferred Cutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows of Resources and Net Position. Additionally, GASB Statement 65 requires that deferred costs from the
refunding of debt, which were previously deferred and amoriized, be presented as deferred outflows of resources.
Bond issuance costs, which were previously deferred and amortized must be included in current expenditures.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS” SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
June 30, 2013

STATEMENT 1

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL)
Actuarial Vaiue of Projected Unit Unfunded Funded
Valuation Assets Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio
Date (a) {b) {b - a) (a/b)
12/31/1997 $0 $63,324 $63,324
1213171998 30 541,866 $41,666
12/31/1990 50 $35,126 $35,126
12/31/2600 $0 $44,921 $44,921
1213172001 30 $44,712
12/31/2002 30 $50,488
1213172003 $0 $56,684
1213172004 $0 $48,867
12/31/2005 $0 $50,632
12/31/2006 $0 $57,121
1213172007 $0 $66,629
1213172008 $0 $77,583
12/31/2008 $128,600
1213172010 -
12/31/2011

61

Covered
Payroll for

Year Ending
On ate

UAAL asa
Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
({b -a) /c)

$550,480
$503,731
$577,806
$703,682
$719,796
$697,283
$721,823
$722,011
$775,001
$812,285

14.34%
8.21%
7.14%
8.78%
9.35%
9.02%
9.55%
8.46%
7.20%
7.94%
9.56%

10.75%

17.81%

17.81%

17.92%



STATEMENT 2

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
June 30, 2013 :

Annual Required Percentage

Year Ending June 30 Contribution Contributed
1998 $9,706 0.00%
1999 $9,485 E 0.00%

2000 $7.858 0.00%
2001 $7.017 0.00%
2002 $8,652 0.00%
2003 $8,619 0.00%
2004 $9,918 . 0.00%
2005 $11,069 0.00%
2006 0.00%
2007 0.00%
2008 0.00%
2009 0.00%
2010 0.06%
20M 0.00%
2012 0.60%
2013 0.00%

Notes fo the Required Schedules:

1213111
Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent of Pay Closed

19 Years
Market Value
5%
Projected Salary Increases™ 4.25% to 7.85%
“Includes Infiation At 3%
Cost-of-Living Adjustments N/A
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STATEMENT 3
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
June 30, 2013

Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit Unfunded Funded of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll
bBate {a) (b) (b -a) {a !/ b) _ {{b -a) lc)
12/31/2008 $0 $1,787,821 $1,787,821 0.00% 31.56%
12/31/2009 $0 $2,167,955 $2,167,955 0.00% 36.70%
1273172010 $0 $2,222,489 $2,222,489 0.00% 36.81%
127312011 36.81%

50 $2,222,489 $2,222,489 0.
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STATEMENT 4
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

June 30, 2013

Annual Required Percentage
Year Ending June 30 Contribution Contributed
2009 $272,070 11.54%
2010 273,391 11.13%
2011 328,830 18.23%
2012 306,587 36.08%
2013 306,587 19.55%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

12/31/10

Projected Unit Credit

Level Percent of Pay Closed
30 Years

Market Value OF Assets

4%
10.5% to 5.0%
3%
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STATEMENT 5
Page tof 7
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROCLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

.

Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $7,632,395 $125,264

Penalties and Interest
Total Ad Valorem Taxes

Local Option Sales Taxes:

2,857

Article 39 and 44 $602,103 ($6,283)
Article 40 1,104,400 9,934
Article 42 1,988
Article 46

Total Local Option Sales Taxes

Other Taxes and Licenses:
Medicaid Hold Harmless Tax
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Privilege Licenses
Total Other Taxes and Licenses

Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenue: |

Beer & Wine Tax

Restricted Intergovernmental Reven

$318,841
38,330
140

State and Federal Grants . $3,638,280 $3,694,237 $155,957
GTP Loans & Loan Repayments 10,628 9,739 (889)
Controlled Substance Tax 496 496
Court Facility Fees 27,000 26,909 (ChD]
ABC - Bottle Tax 2,000 2,570 570
ABC - Law Enforceme 169 169
114,532 126,413 11,881
63,000 62,486

Total Permits & Fees

$55,000 $9,977
30,000 3,485
61,000 (24)

10,000
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Favorable

Budget {Unfavorable)
Sales and Services:

DHHS & Health Department Fees $630,766 ($17,518)
Jail and Officer Fees 386,228 31,280
Ambulance and EMS Fees 705,000 155,581
Recreation Fees 90,876 1,774
Senior Center Meals 4,533 571
Municipal Tax Collection Fee 3,184
Copier and Vending Machines 4,200

Rents 9,100

Total Sales & Services
Total Investment Earnings

Other Revenues:

Gasoline Tax Refund $26,302 $2
United Way Receipts - Senior Center 12,273
Sweet Potato Festival 3,675 3,575
Golden Leaf ~ Elaney Woods 394,000 394,000
Reynolds Civic Grant 23,540 23,5490
Agriculture Center Grant 26,970 26,970
insurance Proceeds 26,000 25,560 {434)
Hurricane Floyd Repayment 25,000 25,000

21,343

ABC Board Profit Distribution
Miscellaneous &2
Total Other Revenues

3

3,570

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
General Goveriiment
Governing Bod

$23,046 $22,399 $647
53,725 44,232 9,403

193,130 192,230 ‘ 900

Adminstration _
Ad-Employee Benefits $13,178
ating Expenses 186,256

.

» Salaries & Employee Benefits
# Operating Expenses

Finance:
Salaries & Employee Benefils $323,384 $301,780 $21,604

Operating Expenses 76,567 64,227 12,340
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Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Taxes: .
Salaries & Employee Benefits $301,032 $10,420
Operating kxpenses 160,840 26,894
Revatuation 76,320 274

Register of Deeds:
Salares & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

Public Buildings:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

Court Facilities:
Operating Expenses

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Public Safety:
Sheriff Department:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

$1,387,088 $21,137
318,026 7,844

County Jail:
Salaries & Employee Benefi
Operating Expenses

Inspections: . ;
Salaries & Employe
OperatingExpenseg

$68,737 $67,266 $1,471
50,860 49,392 1,468
62,115 62,115

Capital Qutlay/Homeland Security Grant

""\'fﬁf - -
mergency Medical Services:

* Salaries & Empioyee Benefits $640,956 $631,061 $8,095
Operating Expenses 325,917 322,782 3,135
Aid to Rescue Districts 48,800 48,800

Capital Outlay
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actuail {(Unfavorabie)

Medical Examiner:
Operating Expenses

%ass

et

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

Environmental Protection:
Forest Fire Prevention:
County Matching to State
TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Economic & Physical Development:
Agricultural Extension:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses
Capital Qutlay/E.W. Project

Soil Conservation Services:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

Economic Development:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

$1,392,908 $1,314,733 $78,175
325,249 225,042 100,207

Sociéﬁ Services:
Administration;
Salaries & Employee Benefits $1,901,759 $1,819,433 $82,326
Operating Expenses 145,041

Adoption Assistance
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Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
TANF Program:
Respite Care Family $6,476 $4.624
Emergency Assistance 6,750 3,434
Foster Care 138,500
: ey T

26 |

Blind Assistance - o a

Energy:
Carolina Power and Light Crisis Fund

Day Care:
County Participation
Smart Start

Adoption Incentive

Crisis LIEAP

s it
| s

Program Expenses

c o .

n fiolrase et S ]
45. L Wei

Child Support Enforcement’

s

Food Stamps B0 |

General Assigtance

e

Independent Li

o S 0

2 et [ Sisees

Wi

et ks

itle XX Legal Expense

“,

Foster Care

Breast & Cervical Cancer

Total Social Services L e

69



STATEMENT 5
' Page6of 7
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
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Variance
Favorable
{Unfavorable)

Veterans Service Officer:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $22,178
Operating Expenses

Youth Services:
Operating Expenses $80,785 ,

TR ﬁm%gs;‘ 'f.é BRI

W”Wﬁz

Senior Services:
Salarles & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

TOTAL HUMAN SERVICES

Culture and Recreation:
Regional Library:
County Matching Share iﬁ%%@%ﬁ%
Recreation:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

Education:
Public Schools:
Current Expens

3‘:’3\

$2,267,005 $2,267,004
505,000 486,286
2 5. . 82753290

$222,000

e
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Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement $223,505 ($13,228)
Interest 408,803
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers To Other Funds (5426,330) {$5,300)
Transfers From Other Funds 434,274
Sale of Fixed Assets {46,000)
Fund Balance Appropriated 325,715 {325,715)
Write Off of Uncoliectible Economic Developm (49,250} {49,250)
Loan Proceeds P 90,000 80,000

Total Other Financing Sources (U

$803,181

3,473,053
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GREENE COUNTY,

NORTH CAROLINA

INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 .

STATEMENT 6

REVENUES:
Restricted Infergovernmental:
Investment Eamings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Education;
Admin/Legal
Architectural Reimbursement
Architectural/Engineering
Construction
Capital Outlay
interim interest
Construction Management
Data Senice Technology
LEED Submission Cost
Special inspections
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Temporary Financing Issted for USDA
installment Purchase Obligations [§3ued
Total Gther Financing Sources

Revenue and Other Financing

Project
Authorization

Actuaal
Prior Current Total
Years Year To Date

Variance
Favorable

{(Unfavorable)

$21,000
32,011
792,500
11,118,275
477,096
100,874
222,300
699,273
3,542
117,27F

$20,061
32,011

116,864

23,400
313,242

$3,448,300

$2,369,276

(2,048,038)
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$20,061
32,011
792,500
10,851,142
428,600
100,874
222,300
313,242
3,542

$13,202,574

381,574)
. (ss1574)

$213

$939

267,133
48,496

386,031

(%
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Emergency April 2012
Fire Property Telephone 2011 Hurricane ChBG
District Revaluation System Tornat Irene Project
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund
Cash and Investments $1,084 $13,948
Restricted Cash $12

Accounis Receivable

Duge From Other Govemments

Due From Other Funds

Taxes Receivabie, Net
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilifies:
Accounts Payabie
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Taxes Receivables
Prepaid Taxes

Total Deferred Inflow

Fund Balances:

Restricted:
Stabilization by State St $23,37 $161
USDA Loan Paymehts

Committed M

389,556 17,189 $13,948

IABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

73



STATEMENT 7

Total Capital Project Funds Total
Norn-major School American  Jail Construction Non-major Total
Special Capital Prawn ! Court House Capital Non-major
Revenue Finance  Cooperative Renovation Projects
Funds Fund Project Fund  Project Fund Funds
$452 567 $24,426 $34,426
12 $985 $129,205 130,190
22,035

1,760 2,256

$17,777
419,627

$11,832

$41,164
513

$2,256 $2,256 $25,788
129,205 129,205 129,205
11

e

o

Tt

__geoz00) 60,403
.4 = jﬁ: 39 g ; :":"*‘E
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Fiscal Year £Ended June 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Emergency April 2011 2012
Fire Property  Tefephone 2011 Hurricane CDBG CDBG
District  Revaluation  Sysfem Tornado Project
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes $671,429

$132,192 $49,204

Restricted Intergovernmental
Investment Earnings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety $671,429
Economic Development
Debt Senice - Principal
Debt Sendce - Interest

Total Expenditures

$1,650 $49,204 $263

AT

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ($2,615) {$1,650)

Operating Transfer In (Ouf) E
FEMA Adjustment

installment Purchase Obligations fssu
Total Other Financing Sources {Use

$11,392

,,,,,,,

g;

Revenues and Other Financ

o

$106,754 $449,760 $8,573 $15,508

Beginning of Year, Jdly
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STATEMENT 8

Total Capital Project Funds Total
Nonmajor School American  Jail Consfruction  Nonmajor Total
Special Capital Prawn { Court House Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Finance  Cooperative  Renovation Projects  Governmental
Funds Fund Project Fund  Project Fund Funds Funds
$671,429
181,749 $559,350 $559,350

26 102 10

$1,248,276

53,822
279,109
435,443

T

0!

$840,469
53,822

$279,109

{f@sz,%n

($41,087) ($155,100) $0 ($603,988)
{$1086,754) $156,204 & 2$201,697 $356,901 $250,147
11,392 11,392

305,062

$4,600 ($333,381)  ($327,801) $252,884
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COMBINING STATEMENTS FOR NON-MAJOR FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds
e Fire District Funds ~ These funds account for the County

eight years.

¢ Emergency Telephone System Fund — Thj
collected by the telephone industry fo fu

o April 2011 Tornado Fund — This fund a¢counts fer the revenues and expenses
associated with the fornado that hit t C unty on Aprit 16, 2011.

s Hurricane Irene Fund — This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses
associated with Hurricane Iréne:whieh made landfall in eastern North Carolina
on August 27, 2011.

e 2011 Community De
for the revenues
revitalization projég

pment Block Grant Project Fund ~ This fund accounts

apital; ro;ects Funds
St hoo! Capital Finance Fund — The County uses this fund to account for the
construction/improvement of the Schools.

+ American Prawn Cooperative Project Fund - The County uses this fund to account
for the construction of a new building for economic innovation fo harvest and process
prawns.

» Jail Construction / Court House Renovation Project Fund — The County uses
this fund to account for the construction of the new County Jail and the
renovations for the Greene County Courthouse.




STATEMENT 9

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

FIRE DISTRICT FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes - Current Year
Ad Valorem Taxes - Prior Years
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety:

Rainbow Fire District
Bull Head Fire District
Maury Fire District
Arba Fire District
Shine Fire District
Little Creek Fire District
Contentnea Fire District
Fort Run Fire District
Jason Fire District
Castoria Fire District
Speight's Bridge Fire D@;ﬁct ;
Total Expendifures

Revenues Over Expendity,

77

Variance
Annual 2013 Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

105,000 109,935 {4,935

46,925 50,443 (3,518
46,124 47,657 (1,533)
54,000 57,168 (3,168)

57,826




STATEMENT 10

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY REVALUATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Annual 2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Investment Eamings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Supplies
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Fund Baiance Appropriated
Total Other Financing Sources
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STATEMENT 11

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Annual 2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovemmental:
PSAP Collections
Investment Eamings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety: ;
Operating Expenses $146,885 $22,169
Equipment 22,155 75,455
Total Expenditures 1 “ 624

Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Fund Balance Appropriated
Total Other Financing Scurces (Uses)
Revenues and Other Fina%ging Sol
Expenditures and Other Fi ahcing

($36,833)

449,760
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STATEMENT 12

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CARCGLINA
APRIL 2011 TORNADO FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Favorable
Authorization Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
REVENUES: , -
Restricted Intergovernmental;
FEMA Recovery Funds $52,464 $52,464
Other;
Insurance Proceeds 188,691 188,691
Total Revenues $241 155 4455 0
EXPENDITURES:

Economic Development:

Insurance Deductible $500
PW 113 - Playground Equip./Scoreboards $54,509

PW-114 - Windscreen & Fence 47,578

PW 118 - Repair 3 Fields 40,440

PW 119 - Sign, Picnic Shelter 17,786 2,026
PW 138 - Overtime ‘ 9,578
PW 341 - Emergency Operations 3,727 143
PW 191 - Field/Glass Cleanup 31,856

PW 86 - Debris Removal 2,000

PW 466 - Picnic in Lieu of Appie, Depot o 23,294 5,707
PW 199 - Volunteer Fire . 2,011
Facilities $2,615 2,615 (2,615)
Refunded to FEMA 11,392

i ot

Total Expenditures

Reventiezand Other Financing
Sourcés Over (Under} Expenditures
: nd Other Financing Sources

':';,/

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 8,573

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 13

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

HURRICANE IRENE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENLES:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
FEMA Recowery Funds
Other:
insurance Proceeds
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Feonomic Development:
PW 446 - Recreation Park
PW 486 - Owertime, Administrative
Facifities
PW 850 - Mosquito Control
PW 430 - Recreation Park Gravel
PW 435 - Roof Repair
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

fiios

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Favorable
{Unfavorable)

Authorization Years Year Date

$35,604 $35,694

22,407

$1,650 4,914 $4,044

81



STATEMENT 14

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
2011 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Favorable
Authorization Years Year Date {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovernmental: ‘
2011 - 11-C-2274 NC Tomorrow Grant Program $50,000 ($708)

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Economic Development:
Planning $44,966 $34
Administation 4,328 672

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 15

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
2012 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Vartance
Project Prior Current Total to Favorable
Authorization Years Year Date {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovernmental: .
20112 Single Family Rehabilifation Program $160,000 > 5263 ($158,737)

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Economic Developmert:
Rehabilitation Hard Costs $121,455
Rehabiliation Soft Costs 24,000
Administation 14,545

$121,455
24,000
5263 $263 14,282

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 16

GREENE COUNTY, NCRTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL CAPITAL FINANCE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:; #

Reserved for Debt Service:
Public School Building

Capital Fund - Lottery $559,348

investment Eamings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Pebt Senice - Principal
Debt Senice - Interest
Total Expenditures

79,108
435,443

Revenues Over Expenditfures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from General Fund
Total Other Financing Sources
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STATEMENT 17

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
AMERICAN PRAWN COOPERATIVE PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorizafion Years Year To Date (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovernmentai:
Rural Center Grant $300,000 $300,000
Golden Leaf Award 50,000 50,000
APC Contribution S i 7,077 {$1)

15,000

NC Eastemn Region Grant
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Engineer Drawings $19,625 $19,625
Supplies 2,966 $2,966
Supplies-Golden Leaf 5,607 5,607
Trawel 3,877 3,877
Equipment 18,484 16,750 1,734
Capital Outlay 281,703 281,703

Live Hoiding System
Live Hauling

Live Shipping

Total Expenditures
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STATEMENT 18

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
JAIL CONSTRUCTION / COURT HOUSE RENGVATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Vartance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
investment Eamings
Total Revenues

$33,982

EXPENDITURES:

Jail Construction:
Administration & Legal $19,003 $56,652 $56,652 ($37,649)
Architectural & Engineering 1,471,104 1,158,408 1,158,408 312,696
Construction 7,853,968 7,903,513 7,903,513 (49,545)
Equipment 200,000 76,493 123,507
Inspection 82,831 (82,831)
Owner's Rep Contract 130,000 131,733 {1,733)
Miscellaneous 445,725 639,943 {194,218)
Contingency 360,000 360,000

Capital Qutlay
Total Jail Construction
Court House Renovation:

20,144

56

Administration & Legal $2,944 $7.056
Architectural - Development & Design $1,068 62,849 6,403
Construction 445,233 340,897 786,130 2,408
Equipment 10,064 25,001 35,155 8,845
Contingency 21,623
Owner's Rep Contract 39,363 25,084 T 64,447 (4,160)
inspection 10,701

Abatement Design Cost
Total Court House Renovation

Total Expenditures

18.068) | ¢

$10,500,000 $10,500,000 $10,500,000
Instaliment Purghase (771,686) (771,686) ($771,686)
Instaliment Purchase - 843,068 466,624 $305,062 771,686 {71,382)

150,000 150,000 {25,000)
2

g Sources

‘ QOther Financing
irces Over (Under) Expenditures
. Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning (410,889)
FUND BALANCE, Ending 363.628)

Amounts reported for Revenue, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance
are Different from the Budget/Actual Statements due to consolidation of
Debt Senice Fund:

Transfers In (Out)

Fund Balance, Beginning {Debt Sendce Fund)
Fund Balance, Ending (Consolidated Courthouse Renovations Fund)
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STATEMENT 19

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
. DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Annual 2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Investment Eamings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Senice Expendifures
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from General Fund
Resenve - Detention Center
Resene - Intermediae Schoal
Total Other Financing Sources

($51,674)
77,580
95,292

Revenue and Other Financing
Sources Over {(Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources :

$121,188

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

172,800

FUND BALANCE, Endi

Prior Years Current Year  Year To Date

$95,292 $68,491 $164,783
77 508 51, 697 129, 205
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STATEMENT 20

Page1of2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES: =
Charges for Senices: :
Water and Sewer Sales $1,899,123 $1,979, £ $80,478
South Greene Water Corporation Charges 144,174 < 58,831
Tap-on Fees and Senice Charges 56,739 (29,840)

Penalties and Interest Charges 54,800
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Nonoperating Revenues:
investment Eamings
Alternative Water Supply Fees
Total Nonoperating Revenues

$104
729,390

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Operating:

Salaries and Employee Benefits $459,037 $457,289 $1,748

Supplies & 178,500 175,837 2,663
Water Purchases ' 402,983 426,868 (23,905)

Maintenance 122,600 110,731 11,869

Contracted Senices 91,785 86,330 5,455

Utilities 158,045 151,172 6,873

Sewer Chaifjes - | 210,000 191,895 18,005

' 62,600 60,630 1,970

67,600 66,253 1,347

164,128 164,128
20,700 20,610 86
560 303 197

Intérest on Long-Term Debt $716,591 $641,570
*Principal Payments 725,149 800,150
Total Debt Service 41 o !
CAPITAL QUTLAY:
Vehicles $20,000
Total Capital Outlay L sanonh
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expenditures



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

UTILITY FUND

STATEMENT 20
Page2of 2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Budget
'OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In:
Altemative Water Supply Fund 717,333
Operating Transfers Out:
Alternative Water Supply Fund (746,658)
General Fund (19 716)

Fund Balance Appropriated
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures, Financing Uses, and
Appropriated Fund Balance

RECONCILING ITEMS:
Depreciation

Principal Payments
Capital Cutlay

: pfematlon Water & Sewer District 1
%mnstratz»e Expenses Water & Sewer Disctrict 1
Transfer from Altemative Water Supply Fund to General Fund
= Transfer to Altemative Water Supply Fund
Reimbursment to Water Fund From Altemative Water Supply Fund
Alternative Water Supply Fund Expenditures
Project Fund
Investment Eamings on Altemative Water Phase 1C
Project Fund
Investment Eamings on Water Debt Senéce Fund
Total Reconciling Hems
Change in Net Position

88

($893,306)
800,150
16,802
7,914
(16,166)
2,037
18

207

412,704
(967)
(41,445)
(3,000)
(307,804)

780,385
(717,332)
(63,934)

170

61
14
($23, 402)




STATEMENT 21
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET
AND ACTUAL (NON ~GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
2013 Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)

REVENUES:
investment Eamings
Total Revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In {Out)
Resene
Tofal Other Financing Sources

Revenues Over (Under) Other

Financing Sources $18

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 504,385

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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: STATEMENT 22
GREENE COUNTY, NCRTH CAROLINA
UTILITY ALTERNATIVE WATER SUPPLY CARITAL RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET
AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)

REVENUES:
Inestment Eamings
Per Meter AWS Fees
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Sendce - Phase 1C Interest Payments
Professional Senvces
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Other Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating Transfers In $632,109 $1,220,826 $588,717
Operating Transfers Out (967,521) (941,008) 26,513
Reimbursment to Water Fund {84,128) (84,128)
Debt Resene - Phase 1A T (30,041) (30,941)
Debt Reserve - Phase 1C {32,865) {(32,865)
Resene o {1,301,260) 1,301,260
Fund Balance Appropriated” 1,175,014 (1,175,014)

$479,894 V m;;» "&:‘;.:’.' 1

5,368,026
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STATEMENT 23
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECT
CUTTER CRFEK SEWER CONSTRUCTION PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Totai Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Investment Earnings $30 648
Total Revenues - %3064
EXPENDITURES:
Construction $1,515,917 $1,476,579 $39,338
Engineering 114,437 96,388 » 18,048
Inspection 112,690 1 12.689 1
Legal/Administrative 5,000 5,000
Surveying 5,500 5,362 138
Permit Fees 1,300 1,300
Other 750 5,901
Confingency
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

- OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Instaliment Purchase Obligation lssued

Transfer fo Utility Fund e
Total Other Financing Sources {Ug

$1,800,000
(105,350) ($105350)
5698650 | 3105350

St
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STATEMENT 24
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECT
ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1A PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Vartance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:

investment Eamings - (BAN Proceeds) $57,380 $59,632 $59,802 $2.422

Investment Eamings from Phase 1A : 20,122 {20,122}

Interest Eamed on Non-Ban Proceeds 28,138 28,138

USDPA - RD Grant Income 1,000,000 1,000,000

EDA Grant income 500,000 500,000

Rural Center Grant Income 400,000 400,000 ,000

NC Birect Appropriations 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Sales Tax Refund - From Farmille 193,193 7.744 7,744 {185,449}

Sale of Timber - Site 247 4,875 4,875

Miscellaneous Income

Total Revenues Fi3bnos5e o

EXPENDITURES: :

Construction $7,659:427 $7,559,127 $57,984

Engineering 465,518 465,518

Inspection 276,127 276,127 2,723

Temporary Financing Interest Expense 398,385 398,385 15,920

Land/Easements 147,447 147,447

Funding Assistance 48,575 46,575

Administrative 46,332 48,332 1

Project Adminstrative 25,000 25,000

Grant Assistance 25,000 25,000

Reimbursables 21,160 21,160

Legal 30,695 30,695 1

Geotechnical 5,625 5,625

Emdronmental 5,000 5,000

Appraisals 2,300 2,300

Accouniing 3,400

Total Expenditures: : %0 a0 T

& - (BAN Proceeds) $6,202,000 $6,202,000 $6,202,000
from DOC Water/Sewer

192,575 192,675 $192,575
el (200,000} {200,000} {200,000)
Tran sfer. to, GC 43-210-434570 {70,620) 70,620
Transferto GC - Water Fund {50,005) (50,995) (50,995)
Transfer to GC - Altemative Water Supply Fund {69,678) {$89,678) (89,678)

Appropriated Fund Balance
Tofal Other Financing Sources

(89,678)

Revenues and Other Financing Over ) o 7 B

Expenditures and Other Financing Sources == 80 sRoa7R - g %ﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ%
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 25

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY CAPRITAL PROJECT
ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1C PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date {Unfavorable)
REVENUES: : &
USDA - RD Grant Income $1,547,332 $1,543,486 ($3,848)
USDA ~ RD Transfer from Farmnille 200,000 200,000
USDA - RD Supplemental Grant 2,000,000 2,000,000
Rural Center Grant income 1,800,000 1,800,000
Sales Tax Refund - Restricted 154,595 {154,595}
investment Eamings - (BAN Proceeds) 5,254 5,256 2
investment Earnings 861 1,184 384
Ligquidated Damages 25,000
USDA - RD Grant Income 52,668 {52,668)
Rural Center Grant Income 50,000 (50,000)
Sales Tax Refund - Restricted 172,131 {172,131}

Total Revenues L 4y

EXPENDITURES: i

Construction $10,220,172 : $8,803,444 $326,728
Engineering . 578,667 578,667 2,934
Temporary Financing Interest Expense 314,615 314,615 183,632
Inspection 3 686,747 555,747 (2}
Land/Easements i5] 5202 372 $150 202,522 8
Administrative . 8,043 8,043 1
Grant Assistance 25,000 25,000

Funding Assistance 25,000 25,000

Legal 20,697 20,697

Audit 1,700 1,700 850
Project Administration 25,000 25,000

Water Board Coordination 27,954 7,046 35,000

Inspection Beyond Contract Period ; 50,456 50,456

Construction Admin Beyond Coptragt Period? 20,000 20,000

Contract No. 16 - Watér Trangmissi ines 81,041
Basic Engineering Fees ¢ 7,000
Inspection # 12,000

Legal 1,000
Administrative

Contingency

E RevenuesQuer (Under) Expenditures
OTHERFINANCING SOURCES (USES):

$3.800,000 $3,800,000 $3,800,000
2,737,000 2,737,000 2,737,000
Interim Financing Loan 113,000 ($113,000)
Repayment of interim Financing Loan {113,000) 113,000

Transferio GC - Alternative Water Supply Fund {167,131) {$350,763) (350,763} (183,632)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 1 g 7

Revenues and Qther Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other
[y gty R P ] .

Financing Uses ) R

e ! 4 s

($358,772) I
FUND BALANCE, Beginning 363,231

FUND BALANCE, Ending : .
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STATEMENT 26

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECT
ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1F PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

~ Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Tofal Favorable
Authorization Years Year s+, Jo Date {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
ARRA - DWSRF Principal Forgiveness Grant $1,500,000 $1,500,000
Sales Tax 90,066 {$90,066)
Local Project Contribution 101 (101)
Misceilaneous 101 101
Total Revenues - ($90,066)
EXPENDITURES:
Construction $2,658,679 $2,468,613 $90,066
Engineering 174,347 174,347
Construction Observation : 191,832 191,832
Legal ' 2,715
Audit 1,700
Administrative 4,607
Project Administration 85,060
Funding Assistance 25,000
Grant Administration 25,000
ARRA DBE Administration 10,000
ARRA Buy American Administration g 6,500
ARRA Job Creation Adminstration 5,000
25,000

ARRA Davis Bacon Administration
Permit Fees :
Total Expendifures

$1.500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000
V& Water Supply Fund 26,513 ($26,513)

inancing Sources (Uses)

Over (U & er) Expenditures and Other
Fmancmg Uses

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 27

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECT
ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1G PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year % {Unfavorable)

REVENUES: _
LUSDA - RD Grant Income $2,138,000 {$2,138,000)
Owner Contribution From Surcharge 100,000 {100,000)
Sales Tax Refund - Restricted : 35,000 (35,000)

Sales Tax Refund - Unrestricted
Total Revenues

165,000

{165,000)

EXPENDITURES:
Construction $8,205,200 $8,205,200
Engineering 536,600 536,600
Inspection 400,000 400,000
Legal $78 $78 14,922
Land/Easements R 22,500 31,680 108,320
Temporary Financing Interest 50,000
Funding Assistance 5,000
Project Administration 10,000
Buy American - ARRA 6,500
Job Creation - ARRA 5,000
DBE - ARRA 10,000
Davis Bacon - ARRA 10,000
Adwertisement 2,000
Printing 10,000
Reimbursable 875 875 1,125
Repayment of Interim Fi 100,000 100,000
Contmgency "' 409,700 409,700
20,600 20,000
15,000 15,000
25,000 25,000
15,000 15,000 15,000
125,000

Expenditures
eventes Over (Under) Expenditures
HER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
USBA - RD Loan Income - (BAN Proceeds) $7,579,000 {$7.573,000)
Inferim Financing Loan From Surcharge 100,000 (100 00(})
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) iy ] -ty 7670000

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under} Expenditures and Other

Financing Uses o0 {59480 ($38453) = ($470633) . (547633
FUND BALANCE, Beginning {¢, 180)
FUND BALANCE, Ending o :
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© STATEMENT 28

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECT
THE REFUGE WATER LINE EXTENSION PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year ate  {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Sales Tax Refund ($2,987)
Total Revenues :
EXPENDITURES:
Contract No. 1 - Water Distribution Line $79,464
Preliminary Engineering Report 750
Basic Engineering Fees 3,725
Additionat Sendces 2,190
Inspection 2,790
Legal . 927
Project Administration 750
Adwertisement _
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures
' OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Greene County )
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources

(5

]

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses :

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

e
ki3

($90,910) ©

2
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STATEMENT 29

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 1 FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAR)
For the Fiscal Year End June 30, 2013

Variance
2013 Favorable
Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES: =
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Administrative
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures

RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS:

RECONCILING ITEMS:

Depreciation
Total Reconciling ltems

Change in Net Position

98



STATEMENT 30

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER DEBT RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year End June 30, 2013

Variance
Annual 2013 Favorabie
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Debt Senice Rewnues D
Total Revenues %%W@ﬁ%

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Senice Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Utility Fund
FPhase 1A Resene
Phase 1C Resene
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenue and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expendifures
and Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

a5,
i

FUND BALANCE, Ending

09



STATEMENT 31

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAPR).
For the Fiscal Year End June 30, 2013

Variance
Annual 2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Investmert Eamings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Senice Expenditures
Toial Expenditures

Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) &
Transfer from Utility Fund . $ 5" $63,806
Phase 1A Reserve (30,941) $30,941
Phase 1C Resene {32,865)

Total Other Financing Sources s B

Revenue and Other Financing
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STATEMENT 32

Page 1 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
EANDFILL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance

2013 Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES: e
Operating:
Landfill Fees

Total Operating Revenues

Nonoperating:
Investment Eamings
Restitution
NCDOT Grinding
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Operating:

Salaries and Employee Benefits ) $179,846 $179,838 $8
Ermployee Training = 1,500 1,465 35
Supplies 30,180 27,295 2,885
Maintenance 62,171 58,678 3,493
Contracted Sendces 171,788 151,980 19,808
ttilities 16,500 16,425 75
Professional Senices 29,800 29,703 97
Insurance 8,000 8,000

Site Emprogzagnant?? 3,000 1,889 1,111

Telephone and Po 5,142 158
Travel i 72 418
Disposal 121,569 14,43

e E

Over (Under) Expenditures
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STATEMENT 32

Page 2 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
LANDFILL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance

2013 Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Fund Balance Appropriated
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS:

$31,369

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

RECONCILING ITEMS:

Decrease in Compensated Absences $8,276
Increase in Other Postempioyment Benefits (5,235)
Depreciation ' {34,522)
Increase in Accrued Landfill Closure a 92,212)
Total Reconciling Hems f ($124,393)

Change in Net Position
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STATEMENT 33

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
2013 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES: .
Operating: e

Transporiation Fares
Total Operating Revenues
Nonoperafing:
 Investment Eamings
ROAP - EMPL
DOT Transportation Coordination Grant
ROAP - EDTAP
ROAP - RGP
Total Nonoperating Revenues

343

Total Revenues 26 %%ngﬁﬁgégggg B
EXPENDITURES:
Operaling:

Salaries and Employee Benefits $315,792 $304,550 $11,242
Supplies and Fuel 89,385 70,403 18,982
Maintenance 23,000 17,561 5,439
Utilifies 2,500 1,986 514
Office Expense 13,750 9,712 4,038
Telephone and Postage 2,700 2,534 166
Travel 5,000 621 4,379
Miscelianeous Operating E 300 198 102
Rent ' 600
Indirect Costs 4,085
Repaymentof 2010 R 9,162

Totak : | Mooz

' Appropriated

cher Financing Sources

Revenues and Other Financing Sources (Uses)
_ Over Expenditures

g RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS
{MODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS:
RECONCILING ITEMS:

(

($17,400)

Decrease in Compensated Absences $5,358

Increase in Cther Post Employment Benefits {2,371}
Depreciation (54,877}
Total Reconeiling Hems ($51,892)
Change in Net Position |
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oyees and to account for medical
insurance claims pai empioyees their spouses and

dependents.




STATEMENT 34

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ASO-SELF FUNDED MEDICAL INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES ~ FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Financial 2013 Favorable
Plan Actual (Unfavorabie)
REVENUES:
Operating:

County Contributions/Premiums
Total Operating Revenues

Nonoperating:
investment Eamings
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Operating:
Medical Claims and Fees

Total

Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures
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Municipal Tax Fund - The
for property tax coilections :
County as well as collget
interest levied on the firs
faxes.

&

Ja: ﬁwmcte )’-‘fmd The Jall Inmate Fund is used to account for

ire required to be remitted to the Greene County Board of
Education.

Cooperative Extension Fund — The Cooperative Extension Fund is
used to account for funds received for agriculfurally-sponsored
events and expenses paid {o cover costs related to those events.

South Greene Water Collection Fund - The South Greene Water
Collection Fund is used to account for water funds collected and
remitted under a contract basis on behalf of South Greene Water
Corporation.




STATEMENT 35

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CARCLINA
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Municipal Tax Fund:
Assets:
Cash $9,823 $119,288

Due from Other Governments

Liabilities:
3% DMV Interest
Accounts Payable

Social Services Fund:
Assets, Cash

Liabilities, Accounts Payable

Jail inmate Fund:
Assets, Cash

Liabifities, Accounts Payable
Fines and Fortfeitures Fund:
Assets:
Cash
Bue from Other Gowemments

Lizbilities:
Accounts Payable

$89,051

Cooperative Extension Fund:
Assets, Cash '

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS:

Assets, Cash and Due From
Other Governments
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $540,225

i EESREE T
(g
e

Total Liabilities




This section Includes additional info on |

property taxes and transfers. .




STATEMENT 36

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
June 30, 2013

Uncoliected Collections Uncollected
Fiscal Year Balance and Balance
Ended June 30, June 30, 2012 Additions Credits June 30, 2013
2012413 $7,759,575 $7,@Z5$5§ $284,030
2011-12 $325,650 262 7: 62,920
2010-11 129,918 46,164
2009-10 65,465 35,303
2008-09 34,032 27,827
200708 21,833 18,260
2006-07 17,204 15,007
2005-08 17,270 15,806
200405 14,701 13,353
2003-04 14,588 13,179
2002-03 37,251
$532,029
107,722

$7,757,659
180,157

-

. si93isie

($180,157)
81,126
(1,426)

4,930
63,169

“Total Collections and Credits
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STATEMENT 37

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
COUNTY-WIDE LEVY
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Total Levy
Property
County-Wide Excluding
Property Amount of ARegistered Registered
Valuation Rate Levy MotorVehicles Motor Vehicles
Original Levy: :
Property Taxed at Current Years Rate $1,025,447,619 0.756 $7,752,384 $981,257
Total 1.005447 619 .
Discoveries: .
Current Years Taxes $3,027,646 $22,889
Penalties 25,361

Total Discoveries

Abatements

Releases ($41,050) ($6,493) ($34,566)

Total Abatements
Total Property Valuation
Net Levy $7,759,575 $6,812,884 $946,691

Uncollested Taxes at June 30, 2048:. 284,030 170,632 113,398

e
G

Current Year's Taxes C

9%
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STATEMENT 38

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2012 Percentage of
Type of Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpayer Business Valuation Valuation

Pitt-Greene EMC Utility $17,452, 495

Ham Farms, Inc. Agricultural
Mill Run Development Group, LLC Construction
Progress Energy Carolinas Utility
Carolina Telephone Telephone
Cutter Creek Golf Club [, LLC Country Club

5,070,867

Piedmont Natural Gas Co., Inc. Utility

4,309,881 0.42%

L.L. Murphrey Company, Inc.

Vanrack, Inc. 4,087,629 0.40%

Biotech Mills, Inc. 3,740,280 0.37%
$78,156,349 7.65%
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BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

662 SUSSEX STREET
KINSTON, NORTH CAROLINA 28504-8319
EDWARD L. BARROW, CPA
JAY A, PARRIS, CPA MEMBERS MAILING ADDRESS
L. DOCK DAVENPORT IE, CPA e, POST QFFICE BOX 6068
O NERICAN PSTITSTE OF CERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCOINTANTS |~ KINSTON, NC 265010065
1. DWAYNE MURPHY, CPA TELEPHONE: (252) 522-526¢

DAVID L. COMER, CPA FAX: (252) 523-6366

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON CSMP”U E.AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED It

To the Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the go mmentai activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each ma;ar fund, e aggregated remaining fund information of
Greene County, North Carolina as of and for the year ende i‘June 30 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprises Greene County’sd financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 9, 2014,

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the fman:
financial reporting (Enternai conirol} fo deterniipe
purpose of expressing our opinionsgen the
effectiveness of Greene County’s interpal ¢
County's internal control.

ents, we considered Greene County’s internal control over
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the

Our consideration of the inter

m’séfnai control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
fifficant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in
tg}dmgs and responses, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we

sses and significant deficiencies.

therefore, material weaknes
the accompanying%schedule

&
ntrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow managemeni or
ourse of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely
akness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, n internal control such that there is a
ibility that a material misstatement of the County's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
n.a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

A signiff?cant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as Finding 13-7 and Finding 13-8 fo be
significant deficiencies.
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Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Greene County's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as Finding 13-2, Finding 13-6, Finding 13-7 and
Finding 13-8.

County of Greene’s Response {o Findings ‘
The County's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompai

responses. The County's response was not sub;ected to the auditing procedures ap hedﬂ
statements and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testin
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness g
report ;s an integral part of an audrt performed in accordance wih Gove

January 9, 2014
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BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.
CERTITIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

662 SUSSEX STREET
KINSTON, NORTH CAROLINA 28504-8319

EDWARD L. BARROW, CPA
JAY A. PARRIS, CPA MAILING ADDRESS
L. DOCK DAVENPORT 11, CPA POST OFFICE BOX 6069

A e o T AL e (INSTON, NG 28501405
J. DWAYNE MURPHY, CPA TELEPHONE: (252} 522-5200
DAVID L. COMER, CPA FAX: (252) 523-63566

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJO
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCUL
SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program y

of compliance requirements described in
r Governmentai Auditors in North Carofina

We have audited Greene County, North Carolina’s compliance with
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Man

federal programs for the year ended June 30 2013,
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompany

its federal programs.
Auditor’'s Responsibility
Our responsibiliiy is fo expres

audit of the types of compli
with audittng standards gen

( overnments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Smgle Audnt Implementation
Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and
'taen reasonable assurance about whether noncompl:ance with the types of comphance

1
:z"%}w

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Greene County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to

above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2013.
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Page 2

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required fo be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
cosks as Finding 13-9, and Finding 13-10. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to
these matters,

The County’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying corrective
action plan. The County’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

with types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and peff g

considered Greene County’s internal control over compliance with requirement: that _ouﬁj have a direct and mat@nai
effect on a major federal program in order to determsne the auditing procedures thaiaare appropriate in the circumstances
eral program and io test and report on internal
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effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingty, we-
County’s internal conirol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the desigﬂ; r operation of a control over compliance does
1 rforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
nent of a federal program on a timeiy basis. A material

ency, or combination of deﬂcnenczes in mternai control over
fig federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet 1mport ygh to merit attention by those charged with governance.

p
ify a“ii deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant

section and was not designed
I herefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were

~ deficiencies or materiaE weaf(ni
ified 'certann deficiencies in internal control over compliance as described in the
% and questioned costs as Finding 13-9 and Finding 13-10 that we consider to be

The County of ene;s response to the internal control over compliance findings adentlﬁed in our audit are descrlbed in
the accompany

ppleed in the audit of compliance and, accorcimgly, we express no apinion on the response.

“The, purpose ofsthis report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
over comphance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly,

BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.
KINSTON, NC

January 9, 2014
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BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

662 SUSSEX STREET
KINSTON, NORTH CAROLINA 28504-8319

EDWARD L. BARROW, CPA
JAY A. PARRIS, CPA MEMBERS MAILING ADDRESS
L. DOCK DAVENPORT I, CPA EMEERS in POST OFFICE BOX 6069

O ANERICAR INSTTIUTE OF CERTIFIED FUSLIC ACCOUNTANTS KINSTON, NC 28501-0069
J. DWAYNE MURPHY, CPA TELEPRONE: (252) 522-5200
DAVID L. COMER. CPA FAX: (252} 523-6366

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WiTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJ%
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECY
133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION:AC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited Greene County, North Carolina's compliance, with the, types of compliance requirements described in
the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina,dssued he Local Government Commission, that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the County’ mé; r State programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.
Greene County’s major State programs are identified in mary of auditors’ resuits section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

)}
Management is responsible for com;)hance Vit ments of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable fo
its state programs,

Auditor’'s Respensibility

sections of OMBCir
Audit Manual for
standards, OMB (

menf i Aud.rtors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit lmplementatkon Act. Those
133 Audits of States, Local Governmentis, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single
equire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
tate program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a iest basis, evidence about Greene County's
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

We bel 2ve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on Greene County’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, Greene County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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. Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Greene County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal confrol over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Greene County’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opmlo on the effectiveness of the
County's internal control over compliance.

|meEy basis. A material
és in internal controi over

BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.
KINSTON, NC

January 9, 2014 ;
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SCHEDULE 1
Page 1 of 9
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

.SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
YES NO

Financial Statements

‘Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified

Internal controt over financial reporting:
o Material weakness(es) identified X

+  Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

» Material weakness(es) identified X
» Significant deficiency(s) identified th
Name of Federal Programs or Cluster
Community Facilities Loan
Title XIX — Medicaid
ri i used to distinguish between
A and Type B Programs $700,353
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SCHEDULE1
‘ Page 20f9
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

YES NO

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X

State Awards
internal control over major State programs:

+  Material weakness(es) identified

+  Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for ma;or .
State programs: Unqualified g

MATERIAL WEA KNES

The County should have personnel in place that have expertise in financial accounting
and reporting sufficient to prepare or review the audited financial statements to ensure
they are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Criteria;

Although the County has financial personnel in place to perform the daily functions of the
finance department, the staff does not have the technical training and background to
prevent, detect, and correct potential misstatements in the financial statements and
notes prepared in accerdance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statements could include material misstatements or inadequate disclosures
not in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles.

Cause: Management has historically relied on its auditors to prepare the audited financial
statements. However, the auditor's services cannot serve as an internal control for the
County. Personnel have not acquired the technical training or expertise to be efficient in
this area.

Recommendation: The County may consider providing the necessary training to current personnel or
outsourcing the financial statement preparation function. However, an analysis of the
costs versus benefits should be considered. This is a repeat finding.
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SCHEDULE 1

Page 30f 9
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013
Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Corrective Action: Due to the related costs in eliminating this control deficiency, management has

determined that we are willing to accept the risks associated with the control deficiency.
We will continue to monitor the internal controls over finangial reporting, and will make
attempts to improve the related internal control process 4

FINDING 13-2 — REPORTING

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
MATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

Criteria: The North Carolina Budget and Fiscal Confrol
governments fo maintain their fina
principles of government account]

Condition:

he County should have a qualified Finance Officer or hire a full-time County Manager
with a strong background in finance and governmental accounting, who would be
capabie of adequately training current accounting personnel.

The County agrees with this finding and will continue to improve on the weaknesses
mentioned. The County has hired a consultant to assist with the training and
development of the Interim Finance Officer. This training and assistance will continue
through the end of 2014, The consultant is also assisting the County staff with the
development of a comprehensive set of Financial Policies and Guidelines. Upon
completion within the next few months, these will be presented to the County Board of
Commissioners for their approval. The consultant is also assisting the staff in
establishing appropriate financial records based on generally accepted principles of
government accounting and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the North
Carolina Local Government Commission. Greene County has also continued to retain
the services of Richard Hicks as the Interim County Manager through December 2014.
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SCHEDULE 1
Page 4 of 9
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

His knowledge of the County will help the County commissioners in their review and
adoption of the 2014-2015 budget, and he will continue his review of County finances.
The County has advertised and interviewed twice for the position of County Manager,
but was unable to find a suitable and qualified candidate for the position. This is partially
the result of the large number of Counties and Cities that are currently recruiting
managers. Plans are underway o begin a new selection Ss in the fall of 2014, All
financial transactions are currently being reviewed by {h County Manager and
the Interim Finance Officer, as well as with assistance ffom theigonsultant. With the
conclusion of the 2012-2013 audit, the County has_made “progress in correcting the
significant reduction in fund balance and is now in fion to improve upon and
monifor the conditions listed in this finding. :

FINDING 13-3 — REPORTING

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
Criteria: County personnel should adjust
balances.
Condition: Some accounts had not b
of the accounts not a
receivable, general ; ivable, accrued vacation, accrued OPEB, landfill
liability closure costs, re eEf funded insurance liability, long-term debt, capital
{,s’ie customer deposits and transfers. Some of these
=ere in our judgment, material to the financial statements
Effect: &'finan state ents could include material misstatements.
Cause: as' procedures in place which require and expect that accounts will be

eflect appropnate year-end balances. Not all accounts were adjusted fo

The County agrees with this finding and has developed a checklist of documenting
duties to be performed on all accounts to reflect appropriaie year-end balances. The
consultant will also provide assistance and guidance at the end of the fiscal year to
ensure proper balances are maintained. It will be a priority of the finance office to make
these adjustments accurately and in a timely manner.

FINBING 13-4 — SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Criteria; Duties should be segregated to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
handled appropriately.

Conditior. With a limited number of personnel for certain functions, there are inherent limitations of

the effectiveness of certain controls due to the lack of segregation of duties among
County personnel in the following departments:
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SCHEDULE 1

Page 5 of 9
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013
Utility: An employee who collects payments also maintains the
subsidiary billing register.
Register of Deeds: Certain employees receive cash, prepare customer receipis,

and make the daily bank deposits

Landfill: An employee who receives on-gi

tipping fees also prepares

Effect
Cause:

Recommendation:
his is a repeat finding.

used to compensate for lack of segﬁ gation

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned .
Corrective Actions: The County agrees with this-’“gfinding and, where feasible, duties will be separated as

much as possible.

FINDING 13-5 — FIXED ASSETS

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
Criteria: should be maintained accurately and completely to ensure that
s»meeting the County's capitalization threshold are capitalized and
d. appropriately
Condition: audit of fixed assets, we determined that the spreadsheet used by the

yfto maintain the fixed asset records contained a significant number of errors.
2 gse included incorrect beginning balances, improper calculations of depreciation,
~ and omissions of additions.

" The depreciation schedule could include material misstatements.

Since custom depreciation software is not being used to track fixed assets, the
County should implement additional procedures to ensure that the spreadsheet used
to depreciate fixed assets is accurate and complete.

The County should carefully test the calculations related to the depreciation schedule
to ensure that calculations are correct and should alse check them thoroughly for all
additions. The County may choose to use custom depreciation software designed for
governmental entities. This is a repeat finding.

Views of Responsible

Officials and Planned

Corrective Action: The County agrees with this finding. County staff is becoming familiar with the fixed
asset module in MUNIS and will begin the process of converting all fixed assets to the
new system. The County plans fo have all of the fixed asset information transferred to
the MUNIS software system prior to the end of fiscal year ending June 30, 2014,
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FINDING 13-6 —~ BUDGET OVER-EXPENDITURES

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

IMMATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

Criteria: in accordance with North Carolina General Statute #5982l monies received or

‘ expended by a local government or public authority shg in accordance with an

approved budget ordinance.

Condition: Expenditures made in 10 areas of various funds ex
the governing board.

Effect: Moneys were spent that had not bee

Cause: The County did not amend the budget arj aé‘cj}:for changes occurring through the year that

were not anticipated in the inftial adoption of the budget ordinances. Required budget
amendmentis needed o %GCO :
for amendment hefore yéar-en

Recommendation:
Views of Responsible

Officials and Planned
Corrective Actions:

budget ordinance no earlier than ten days after the day the budget is presented to the
board and no later than July 1 for the upcoming fiscal year.

The County adopted the budget ordinance for the June 30, 2013 fiscal year on July 2,
2012.

The budget ordinance was adopted after the time frame that is allowed.

Cause: The County assumed that since July 1 occurred on Sunday, that they had until Monday,
July 2 to adopt the budget. The County now understands this not to be the case, and will
ensure that the budget is adopted prior to the start of the new year in the future.

Recommendation: The Board and County Management should work closely to ensure that budget
ordinances are adopted within the allowed time frame in the future.

Views of Responsible

Officials and Planned

Corrective Actions: Management agrees with this finding and intends fo monitor this requirement more

closely in fulure years.
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FINDING 13-8 ~ BUDGETS OUT OF BALANCE AT YEAR END

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
IMMATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

A T,

Criteria: North Carolina General Statute 159-8(a) requires eachloc; ﬁ’govemment and pubiac
authority to operate under an annual balanced budget orgdi %
revenues and appropriated fund balances shall equal the

Condition:

Fffect:

Cause:
Recommendation:

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Corrective Actions:

ill. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUES
FINDING 13-9 P

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
IMMATERIAL NONCOMPLIANG

scut! ng Reqwrements {(DSS-1571) / Subsidized Child Care Cluster: Child Care
lopment Fund — Administration, Child Care and Development Fund — Discretionary, Child
e and Development Fund — Mandatory and Match, TANF, Foster Care Title IV-E, Social
Services Block Grant Day Care; Medical Assistance Program

93.575, 93.596, 93.558, 93.667, 93.778

Claims for overpayments in the Work First, Food and Nutrition Services Program (Food
Stamps), Medicaid Programs and AFDC/TANF are to be entered and tracked in EPICS
(Enterprise Program Integrity Control System) by all counties. The county must maintain
adequate documentation to substantiate the overpayment for all cases.
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Condition: The County EPICS supervisor and case worker have not dedicated the amount of time

needed to adequately make inquiries to discover and track new claims. The County is
currently collecting payments in the form of recoupments and some cash collections on
existing cases.

Questioned Cost: $0 — Does not apply.

Context: Results of our test showed that the only significani tim
EPICS program is to process new applications. V
performed.

Effect: County potentially could miss discovery of ne

be entitled fo collect the overpaymeg;t 5
&

Cause: The County Department of Si
vacancies Due to the vacancie

Recommendation.

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned

Corrective Actions: agrees with this finding. The County plans to dedicate more

FINDING 13-10

us DEPARTM
Passed Through

OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
G.’Department of Health and Human Services:

Crosscutting Requirements (DSS-1571) / Subsidized Child Care Cluster: Child Care
Development Fund — Administration, Child Care and Development Fund — Discretionary, Child
Care and Development Fund — Mandatory and Match, TANF, Foster Care Title IV-E, Social
Services Block Grant Day Care; Medical Assistance Program

93.575, 93.596, 93.558, 93.667, 93.778

Criteria: Empioyee day sheets must account for 100% of employee time as required in the DSS
Services Information System User's Manual, Program codes and activity codes must be
summarized correctly and day sheet entries must be supported by documentation in
case record files. Also, day sheet summaries must be fransferred to the DSS-1571
accurately fo an eligible fund source.
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Condition: Of the three case workers tested, two did not provide adequate documentation in case

record files to support summary on day sheets for time charged to Service Information
System (S1S) codes.

Questioned Costs: $0 — Does not apply.
Context: In our test of specific dates (the 3 of both July 2

fifesd tested while another
1S coded time in the case

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Corrective Actions:!
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FINDING: 13-1

A Name of Contact Person: Sandy Barss, Interim Finance Officer

iated with this control
itsourcing financial

B. Corrective Action:

C. Proposed Completion Date:

FINDING: 13-2

A, Name of Contact Person:
B. Corrective Action; i prking with a consultant to improve the
ing’records. With the aid of the consultant and
outssde classes the County plans to invest the resources necessary to
C. Proposed Compiletion Date:

FINDING: 13-3

A. Name of Contact Perso%

Interim Finance Officer and consuliant have developed a checklist
: document:ng duties to be performed on all accounts to reflect
appropriate year-end balances. The consultant will also provide
assistance and guidance at the end of the fiscal year to insure proper
baiances are maintained. It will be a priority of the finance staff to make
these adjustments accurately and in a timely manner.

B. Corrective Action:

The County plans to begin this process immediately.

Sandy Barss, Interim Finance Officer

Where feasible, the duties will be separated as much as possible, and
alternative controls will be used to compensate for lack of segregation.

E The County has been and will continue implementing the above
C. Proposed Completion Date: procedures as alternatives become available.

FINDING: 13-5
A Name of Contact Person; Sandy Barss, Interim Finance Officer

.B. Corrective Action: County staff is becoming familiar with the fixed asset module in MUNIS
and will begin the process of converting all fixed assets to the new
system. The County plans to have all of the fixed asset information
transferred to the MUNIS software system prior to the end of 2014.
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C. Proposed Completion Date: The County has already begun this process.
FINDING: 13-6

A.  Name of Contact FPerson: Sandy Barss, Interim Finance Officer

items on a monthly basis.
at meetings and solicit the
s department's accounts.

B, Corrective Action: The Finance Officer plans to review allii
The Board will review all department fug
department head’s oversight for all

C. Proposed Completion Date:
FINDING: 13-7

A Name of Contact Person:
B. Correcﬁve‘Action:

C. Proposed Completion Date:

FINDING: 13-8

A Name of Contact Person:

Finance Officer will ensure that all proposed budget amendments
balance before adoption.

B. Corrective Action:

The County plans to begin this process immediately.

Christy Nash, DSS Director
The County plans to dedicate more time towards EPICS in the future.

The County plans to begin this process immediately.

Christy Nash, DSS Director

Corrective Action: Procedures will be implemented to ensure that proper documentation
supporting work performed on day sheet summaries are in files.

C. Proposed Completion Date: The County plans to begin this process immediately.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

12-1 Financial Reporting

Not corrected. See current year finding 13-1.

12-2 Reporting

Not correcied. See current year finding 13-2.

12-3 Segregation of Duties

Not corrected. Duties are being separated as_much’

being implemented for lack of separation. Sgd¢ year finding 13-3.

12-4 Fixed Assets

P

5

Not corrected. Errors on the County'sifixed asset depreciation schedule were noted during the
current year. See current year findihg
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Administered by County Finance Depariment:
USDA Supplement Tifle lil C-1 . 10.570 NC-15
USDASupptement Title Il C-2 10.570 NC-15

$0 $0
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Public Health:
Administered by Counly Health Depariment:
Special Suppiemental Nufrition Program for
Women, Infants and Children: $191,858
AGRI-SFP Foed Program Meal 248
Direct Benefit Payments:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for WIC 377897
Total Bivision of Public Health $570,003 $0 $0
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Service
Division of Social Services: y
Administered by County Depariment of Social Services:
Supp!emental Nutrmon Assrstance Program CI'"
Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 $169,901 $169,901
Total Supplemental Nutrition Assistanc $169,901 $0 $169,901
$751,010 $0 $169,901
10.760 $8,070
10.760 38,453
10,766 305,062
10.766 1,079,103
$1.430,688 50 $0

- ﬁ%ﬁ&
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title ' Number Number Federal State Local

.S, DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed Through NC Department of Crime Control and Public Safefy:
Division of Emergency Management:
Administered by County Finance Deparfment:
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness 20.703
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program
Emergency Management Performance Grant
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVEL OPMENT:
Passed Through NC Department of Commerce:
Division of Community Assistance:
Administered by County Finance Department;
2011 Community Development Block Grant
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.8. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
Passed Through NC Department of Crime Control & B
Administered by County Finance Department

2009 Recovery Act 16.804
Total U.S. Department of Justice
N/A NC-15 $16,954 $1,884
93.044 NC-16 $18,973 1,116 2232
93.045 NC-15 33,136 1,048 3,899
N/A NC-15 28,640 2,960
me-Delivered Meals 93.045 NC-15 13,982 823 1,646
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantot's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Locai

Administered by Counly Department of Social Services and County Council on Aging:
In Home Services:

in-Home 90% State Funds NIA NC-15 $7,740
in-Home Title il-B 93.044 NC-15 299 599
Social Services Blogk Grant 93.667 NC-15 5860 2,360
Total Aging Cluster $118,003 $23,320
Administration for Community Living:
Passed Through Easfern Carolina Council of Governments:
Title Ill-D Disease Prevention and Health Promotion $3,107 $183 $366
Total Administration for Community Living $3,107 $183 $366
Division of Public Health:
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Administered by County Health Department.
Public Health Emergency Preparedness $44.216
immunization Program 7,635
Prevention Invesfigations 5715
Cancer Early Detection 4,906 $740
Risk Reduction/Health Promotion 9,640
State Health Access Program : 2,189
Healthy Start Communities 42,410
Maternal and Child Health Services 58,853 44,145
Family Planning Services 30,811
Total Division of Public Health $206,475 $44,885 $0
Administration for Children and:
Passed Through NC: gepartfﬁ%‘
Division of Social Ser :
Administered b ty:Einance Department:
J&pendence Program (CFCIP) 93.674 $2,137 $534
Chiidren and Families $2,137 $534 $0
h NC Department of Health and Human Services
‘eniporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster:
Administered by Counly Department of Social Services:
Werkiirst Adminisiration 93558 $86,272 $39,476
Workfirst Services 93.558 268,461 139,795
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 $500
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.556 2,325
Direct Benefit Paymenis: ‘
Benefit Payments ' 93,558 155,060 8 8
Totai TANF Cluster $512,118 $508 $179,279
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

Titie V-D Administration 93.563 $109,369
Low-income Home Energy Assistance:
Adminisiration 93.568
Crisis Infervention Payments 93.568
Home Energy Assistance 93.568
$0 $0
Permanency Planning - Reg $12,719 $0 $4,240
Foster Care and Adoption Cluster
Title ME CPS $17,483 $5,481 $12,002
Tifle M-E Foster Care 61,167 61,102
Title M-E Adoption 115 115
Direct Benefit Paymenis:
Title W-E Foster Care 79,661 24,488 27,505
Title M-E Adoption Subsidy 117,348 T 31,348 32,798
Total Foster Care and Adoption Clustg{ $275,772 $61.315 $133,522
Social Services Block Grant:
Other Sernvices and Training 93.667 $113,359 $10,651 $41,336
In Home Senvices Fund 93.667 702 100
Total Social Services, Block $114,061 $10,651 $41,436
$1.369,826 $73.008 $467,846
93.596 $70,072
93.575 277,141
93.596 125,064
)] 93596 28,735
Total Child Care Fund Cluster $501,012 $0 $0
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number  Number Federal State Local

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Foster Care Title M-E

Smart Start

TANF MOE

£$3,105
(1,700)
23,332

Total Subsidized Child Care Cluster $24,737 $0
Total Division of Child Development $24,737 $0
Health Care Financing Administration:
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Medical Assistance:
Administered by County Department of Social Services:
Adult Care Home Speciai/Case Management $3,704 $471 $3,233
Medical Assisfance 234319 9,608 224,843
Direct Benefit Payments:
Medical Assisiance 18,574,438 10,355,515
$18,812,461 $10,365,594 $228,176
Division of Social Services: &
Administratior.
State Children's Insurance Program, N 93.767 $19,526 $845 $5.315

20.609

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number  Number Federal State Local

CRAB

e

F
A

NC DEPARTMENT OF THE ADMINISTRATION:
Division of Veteran Affairs:
Administered by County Veterans Office;
Veteran Affairs MN/A

NC DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES:
Pivision of Waste Management:
Administered by County Finance Depariment:
Soil Conservation Grant

NC DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE & DELINQUENCY PREVENTION:
Administered by County Finance Depariment:
Juvenile Crime Prevention:
Juveniie Crime Prevention Administration
Family Preservation
SEED Program
Juvenile Resftitution

Division of Social Services:
Administered by County Department of

Energy Neighborhood N/A $1,712
Direct Benefit Payment: N/A

Foster Care at Risk Maxmizali N/A 779 $419

¥ ' N/A 70,164 70,164

N/A 48,405 48,405

N/A 61,633 6,778

N/A 246,806 246,806

$0 $429,499 $372,572
¢ N/A $2,958
mvironméntal Health N/A 4,000
‘Whsguito-Public Health Pesticide NiA 2,795
General N/A 99,470
Communicable Disease N/A 10,623
Risk Reduction/Health Promotion N/A 6,208
Women's Health Senice Fund N/A 7,081
Tuberculosis N/A 3578
TB Medical Senvice N/A 396
Healthy Communities N/A 2,832

$0 $139,019

Total NC Department of Heaith and Human Services
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

NC DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Administered by Counly Finance Department:

Local Farmers Market Cooperative N/A
Total NC Department of Agriculture

NC STATE BOARD OF ELECTIONS:
Administered by County Finance Deparfment:
Help America Vote Act N/A
Total NC State Board of Elections

NC DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE:
Administered by County Finance Depariment:
SHHP Grant
Total NC Department of Insurance

NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Administered by County Finance Department:
ROAP Funds

12 Single Family Rehab Project

N/A 7 $263
NC Housing Financing Agency SR R | o =

TOTAL STATE ASSISTANCE

i S e
- $1a71390 | o

TOTAL FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTANCE
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant activity of
Greene County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information In this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit implementation Act. Therefore, sghm cunts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basig finangial statements. Benefit
tatements. However, due

on this schedule.
LOANS QUTSTANDING

' Ihe expended portion of these loan

Amount

Program Title Outstanding

Communiiy Facilities Loans & Grants
Financing with USDAloans

$10,500,000 loan, $'EO,500,00Q§ 10.766 $10,361,106

10.766 $6,013,081
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